AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE

CARPINTERIA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT CARPINTERIA, CALIFORNIA

AND THE

CARPINTERIA ASSOCIATION OF UNITED SCHOOL EMPLOYEES

AFT #2216 (afl-cio)

July 1, 2007 – June 30, 2018

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Preamble	3
ARTICLE 1. DISTRICT RIGHTS	3
ARTICLE 2. RECOGNITION	4
ARTICLE 3. CLASS SIZE	5
ARTICLE 4. GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE	7
ARTICLE 5. ASSOCIATION RIGHTS	11
ARTICLE 6. COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS	13
ARTICLE 7. PROFESSIONAL DAY AND RESPONSIBILITY	20
ARTICLE 8. TRANSFER AND REASSIGNMENT	22
ARTICLE 9. EVALUATION	24
ARTICLE 10: PERSONNEL FILES	26
ARTICLE 11. SHARED DECISION MAKING	27
ARTICLE 12: DISCIPLINE SHORT OF DISMISSAL	28
ARTICLE 13. LEAVE PROVISIONS	29
ARTICLE 14. TEACHER ON SPECIAL ASSIGNMENT "TOSA"	39
ARTICLE 15. ORGANIZATIONAL SECURITY	40
ARTICLE 16. SAVINGS PROVISION	43
ARTICLE 17. CONCERTED ACTIVITIES	43
ARTICLE 18. SUPPORT OF AGREEMENT	43
ARTICLE 19. EFFECT OF AGREEMENT	43
ARTICLE 20. COMPLETION OF MEET AND NEGOTIATION	44
ARTICLE 21. TERMS OF THE AGREEMENT	44
APPENDIX A – CERTIFICATED SALARY SCHEDULE	45
APPENDIX B - CERTIFICATED EVALUATION FORM	48
APPENDAIX C - PEER ASSISTANCE AND REVIEW DOCUMENTS	53
ADDENDUM	

PREAMBLE

This is an Agreement made and entered into this November 8, 2007 between the Carpinteria Unified School District (hereinafter referred to as "District") and Carpinteria Association of United School Employees (CFT-AFT #2216) (AFL-CIO) (hereinafter referred to as "Association").

ARTICLE 1. DISTRICT RIGHTS

- 1.1 The Association confirms that the District retains all of its powers and authority to direct, manage and control to the full extent of the Law.
- 1.2 The exercise of the foregoing powers, rights, authority, duties and responsibilities by the District, the adoption of policies, rules, regulations and practices in furtherance thereof, and the use of judgment and discretion in connection wherewith, shall be limited only by the specific and express terms of this Agreement, and then only to the extent such specific and express terms are in conformance with law.
- 1.3 **Emergency**. The District retains its rights to amend, modify or rescind policies and practices referred to in this Agreement in cases of emergency.
 - 1.3.1 Emergency is defined as a natural disaster, national disaster as declared by a State or Federal official, Act of God, or epidemic as declared by the County or State Health Department which directly affects normal school operations and is expressly excluded from the provisions of the **Grievance Procedure**, **Article 4**. Normal school operations will resume as soon as the District determines it is safe and healthful to do so.

ARTICLE 2. RECOGNITION

The District confirms its recognition of the Association as the Exclusive representative for that unit of employees as per the certification of the Educational Employment Relations Board in case #LA-R-496.

- 2.1 **Included**: In order for a temporary, probationary or tenure certificated part-day or full-day employee to be included in the unit, fifty percent (91 days) or more of the teacher regular work year indicated on the District calendar must be serve in the certificated position: Teacher (Classroom all subjects and grades); Teacher (Learning Handicapped Class); Teacher (Resource Specialist); Certified Preschool and Children Center Teacher (Associate Teacher, Master Teacher, Site Supervisor), Speech and Language Specialists; Resource Teacher; Middle School Counselor; High School Counselor; Community Home Based Teacher; Teachers on Special Assignment; and Certificated Librarian.
- 2.2 Excluded: Superintendent, District Administrator, Principal, Assistant Principal, Psychologist, Dean, any Management-designated Supervisory or Confidential part or full-time position Preschool Directors, Substitute Certificated positions, Long Term Substitute Certificated position, service under Education Code Sections 44909 and 44910 except the position of Resource Specialist employed under the State Master Plan for Special Education, CETA and Manpower-type positions, summer school or after school positions, and consultants.

Article 2 revised 5/30/13

ARTICLE 3. CLASS SIZE

Both the District and the Association recognize that they have an interest in keeping class sizes as low as feasible. To that end, the District is committed to implement Class Size Reduction within reasonable fiscal constraints. They also recognize that class size is an important element in the learning of children and will dedicate their future efforts to maintaining and improving the quality of the District's instructional programs. While there are many competing priorities for District resources, an important priority must be to retain the character of the community and the schools by making class size a continuing concern.

3.1 The District determines the numbers and types of classes/subjects that are scheduled. Within the following framework, specific class sizes are determined by the superintendent in conjunction with the principals. CAUSE and the District value class size reduction and believe that reasonable class size promotes effective instruction. As long as sufficient resources are available to maintain the program [in the sole discretion of the Board of Education], the District will maintain the State of California's "K-3 class size reduction program (currently 20-1 within the parameters of the State's regulation)."

Kindergarten Regular class limit is 29: 20-1 as set out above.

Grades 1-3 Regular class limit is 30 20-1 as set out above.

Grades 4-6 Regular class limit is 32

Grades 7-8 Regular class limit is 35

Grades 9-12 Regular class limit is 36 (with individual teacher average limit of 34)

Remedial classes Class limit is 28 (with individual teacher average limit of 24)

- Grades 7-12 P.E. (except athletics and band), chorus and computer operations have an individual teacher average limit of forty-eight (48). Chorus and computer operations have a class limit of fifty (50). P.E. has a class limit of fifty-two (52), except those classes in a semester which contain athletes returning from or about to enter extra-curricular athletics, in which case the class size maximum shall be sixty (60). Marching, Concert Bands and athletics are exempted from specific class/size teacher ratios.
- 3.1.1 Grades K-12 Upon notification of the Association and voluntary written consent of the teacher these maximum class sizes may be exceeded.
- 3.1.2 All students that participate in the class on a regular basis (excluding Teacher Aides) will be counted towards that teacher's class size. A student assisted with a special education aide will not be counted.

- 3.2 Whenever the class size maximum is exceeded during the period September through April, the following process will be instituted. The Principal or designee has five (5) work days to meet with the teacher to brainstorm options to deal with the issue. The teacher may seek the assistance of others in the resolution of the class size issue. If no modification is made by the sixth (6th) workday, the principal will allocate \$50.00 for each student in excess of the maximum to the teacher to order instructional supplies as determined by the teacher.
- 3.3 For K-3 Class Size Reduction, the class size maximum for the purposes of this process shall be three more than the State average for full funding.
- 3.4 The \$50.00 is available on a per semester basis at all schools.
- 3.5 In the event the class size drops back below maximum level, the \$50.00 will be retained, but the next student above the maximum will not trigger an entitlement to another \$50.00 if after the principal meets with the teacher and interested others, the decision is made to retain that student in the class.
- 3.6 The District and CAUSE recognize that the <u>Williams</u> settlement requires the provision of adequate materials and textbooks to accommodate all students. When a teacher believes he or she needs materials, textbooks, desks or other materials as set out in <u>Williams</u>, the teacher will bring the matter to the attention of the principal. In the event there is a delay in fulfilling the needs of the students, the teacher or CAUSE representative shall in writing inform the Superintendent of the delay.

ARTICLE 4. GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

4.1 **Definitions**

- 4.1.1 A **grievance** is a formal written allegation by a grievant that has been adversely or personally affected by a violation of the specific provisions of this Agreement in the areas of the scope of representation (Government Code 53543.2) which has been filed as per this Article. Actions to challenge or change the policies of the District as set forth in the rules and regulations or administrative regulations and procedures must be undertaken under separate legal processes. Other matters for which a specific method of review is provided by law, by the rules and regulations of the Board of Education, by the administrative regulations and procedures of this School District or which are not within the scope of the written Agreement are not covered by this procedure.
- 4.1.2 A **grievant** shall be an individual unit member, a group of unit members, or the Association when it grieves on behalf of specified individuals or regarding a Association right provided by this Agreement.
- 4.1.3 A day is any day in which the central administrative office of this School District is open for business.
- 4.1.4 The **immediate supervisor** is the individual having immediate jurisdiction over the grievant who has been designated to adjust grievances.
- 4.1.5 A **designee** may be any one or more of the following: Member(s) of the Board of Education; Superintendent; Assistant Superintendent, Business; legal advisor(s); or any other persons selected by the Board of Education to aid in making a decision

4.2 Informal Level

- 4.2.1 Before filing a formal written grievance, the grievant is to attempt to resolve it by an informal conference (I) with his/her immediate supervisor.
- 4.2.2 An additional informal conference (II) may be scheduled by the unit member in a further attempt to resolve the grievance.

4. 3 **Level I**

4.3.1 Within ten (10) days after the occurrence of the act, omission giving rise to the grievance, or when it becomes apparent and a correction can still be made, the grievant must present the grievance in writing, fully completed on the appropriate District form to the immediate supervisor. Failure to do so automatically disallows the filing of the grievance. This statement shall be a clear, concise statement of the grievance, specific Section of the written Agreement within the

- scope of representation alleged to have been violated, the circumstances involved, witnesses and supporting data (if any), the decision rendered at the informal conference, and the specific remedy sought.
- 4.3.2 The immediate supervisor shall communicate the decision to the employee and superintendent in writing within ten (10) days after receiving the grievance. If the supervisor does not respond within the time limits, the grievant may appeal to the next level.
- 4.3.3 Within the above time limits either party may request a personal conference.
- 4.3.4 The Association may select a representative, who upon invitation of the grievant, may participate in the grievance process at informal conference (II) and Levels I and II and III.
- 4.3.5 The District may select a representative who may participate in the grievance process at the informal conference (II) and Levels I and II and III.

4.4 Level II

- 4.4.1 In the event the grievant is not satisfied with the decision at Level I, the decision may be appealed on the appropriate District form to the superintendent or designee within five (5) days.
- 4.4.2 This statement shall include a copy of the original grievance, the decision rendered, and a clear, concise statement of the reasons for the appeal.
- 4.4.3 The superintendent or designee shall communicate a decision within ten (10) days after receiving the appeal. Either the grievant or the superintendent or designee may request a personal conference within the above time limits.
- 4.5 **Level III- Arbitration**. If within a period of ten (10) days after receipt of the decision of the appropriate administrator, the grievant is not satisfied with the decision rendered at Level II, and wishes to appeal the grievance further, the Association may, after consultation with the grievant, submit on the appropriate District form to the superintendent, an appeal for Arbitration. It is expressly understood that the only matters which are subject to Arbitration are grievances as defined in Section 4.1.1 which were processed and handled in accordance with the limitations and procedures of this Article. Processing and discussing the merits of an alleged grievance by the District shall not constitute a waiver by the District of a defense that the dispute is not grievable.
 - 4.5.1 **Arbitrator** The Arbitrator shall be selected by the grievant and the superintendent within five (5) days after such appeal request is received by the superintendent. If the two parties fail to reach agreement on the choice of an Arbitrator within five (5) days, the California State Conciliation Service or the American Arbitration Association will be requested to supply a list of five names.

- Each party will alternately strike from the list until only one name remains. The order of striking will be determined by flip of the coin.
- 4.5.2 It shall be the function of the Arbitrator to decide whether there has been a violation of the Agreement, and provide remedy if there has been a violation. The Arbitrator shall be subject to the following limitations:
 - 4.5.2.1 The Arbitrator shall have no power nor authority to add to, subtract from, disregard, alter, or modify any of the terms of this Agreement or the written policies, rules, regulations or procedures of the District.
 - 4.5.2.2 The Arbitrator shall have no power nor authority to establish or change the structure of the salary schedule or Responsibility Levels, or hourly rates of pay.
 - 4.5.2.3 The Arbitrator shall have no power nor authority to make any decisions which requires the commission of an act prohibited by law or which is violative of the terms of this Agreement.
 - 4.5.2.4 All costs for the services of the Arbitrator, including, but not limited to, per diem expenses, his/her travel and subsistence expenses, costs of any hearing room and the recording, and preparation, and typing of any reports shall be paid by the Association. All other expenses shall be borne by the parties incurring them and neither party shall be responsible for the expenses of the witnesses called by the other.
 - 4.5.2.5 Either party may arrange for a reporter to record the hearing. The cost of service and the expense of such report shall be paid by the party arranging the reporting.
 - 4.5.2.6 If the parties cannot agree upon a submission agreement, the Arbitrator shall determine the issues by referring to the written grievance and the answers thereto at each step.
 - 4.5.2.7 The decision of the Arbitrator will be submitted to the District and the Association and it will be binding upon the parties to this Agreement.
- 4.5.3 No recommendation rendered by the Arbitrator shall be retroactive beyond the date of filing of the grievance in Level I of this Grievance Procedure. The Arbitrator shall have no power to render a decision on any grievance occurring before or after the term of this Agreement.
- 4.6 **Waiver**. The grievant and superintendent or designee may mutually agree in writing to waive any step in this grievance procedure.

- 4.7 **Association to receive copy**. The District shall not agree to a final resolution of the grievance until the Association has received a copy of the grievance and the final proposed resolution, and has been given an opportunity to file a response. Said response shall be filed by the Association within ten (10) days following receipt.
- 4.8 Up to three (3) Association representatives may be annually designated to receive non-instructional time-off for the processing of grievances at Levels I and II (Sections 4.4 and 4.5) subject to the following conditions:
 - 4.8.1 Twenty-four hours prior to release from duties for grievance processing the designated representative shall inform and receive the approval of the District;
 - 4.8.2 That such time-off shall be limited solely to representing a grievant in a conference with a management person, at Levels I and II and III and in no way shall this limitation include use of such time for matters such as gathering information, interviewing witnesses, or preparing a presentation.
 - 4.8.3 That no more than one representative shall receive time-off at any one time.
 - 4.8.4 The District reserves the right to limit time-off from duties when it determines that the program of education is being materially affected because of member(s) absence.

ARTICLE 5. ASSOCIATION RIGHTS

- 5.1 **Payroll Deductions**. The District will deduct from the pay of Association members and pay the Association the normal and regular monthly Association membership dues as voluntarily authorized in writing by the employee on the District form subject to the following conditions:
 - 5.1.1 Such deduction shall be made only upon the submission on a District-approved form of a duly executed and revocable authorization by the employee.
 - 5.1.2 The submission of new, changed or discontinued deductions on or before the 10th day of each month will go into effect with the subsequent pay warrant. Submission of the deduction after the 10th day of each month will go into effect with the second following pay warrant. (For example, submission of a deduction form on October 8th will go into effect on the October 31st pay warrant whereas submission of a deduction form on October 17th will go into effect on the November 30th pay warrant.)
 - 5.1.3 Neither any unit member nor the Association shall have any claim against the District for any deductions made or not made, as the case may be, unless a claim of error is made in writing to the superintendent within thirty (30) days after the date such deduction(s) were or should have been made.
 - 5.1.4 The list of persons for whom such deductions are made as supplied by the County Schools Office on its computer print out will be given to the Association treasurer when received.
 - 5.1.5 The Association agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the District, its officers, employees, and agents for any loss or damages arising from the operation of this Article.

5.2 Communication with Members

- 5.2.1 All Association business, discussions, and activities will be conducted by unit members or Association officials so as to not interfere with instruction, except when authorized by the President of the Association and the Superintendent.
- 5.2.2 The District and the Association agree that the after-school hours of one day each month should be reserved for Association activities. The District agrees to not schedule District or site level meetings on those afternoons without prior approval of the Association. These days shall be identified prior to the end of the proceeding school year. For the 2007-2008 school year the second Tuesday of each month is reserved for Association activities.
- 5.2.3 The Association will obtain a Civic Center Permit for meetings to verify the availability of the facilities. Such requested activities and use of facilities will not

interfere with the program of education or right of employees to refrain from listening to or speaking with a Association representative. The Association shall pay in advance a reasonable fee for expenses related to utilities, security, clean-up and any unusual wear or damage, except that the Association may use at no cost a school facility after the regular work day when there is no direct cost other than utilities.

- 5.2.4 No school supplies are to be used in constructing, distributing or posting of Association information except as approved by the superintendent.
- 5.2.5 The Association may use the school mailboxes and bulletin board spaces designated by the District (typically these will be the same as those in existence at the beginning of the campaign for the exclusive representative election of March 17, 1977) subject to the following conditions: (1) All postings for bulletin boards or items for school mailboxes must contain the date of posting or distribution and the identification of the organization by the CAUSE, CFT or AFT insignia. The Association shall have and it accepts full responsibility for the contents of said material so identified; (2) A copy of such postings or distributions must be delivered to the Superintendent or designee prior to posting or distribution and to the principal at the time of distribution; and (3) neither the District nor the Association will post or distribute information which is libelous of the District or its personnel.
- 5.2.6 CAUSE may use the District email system provided that CAUSE agrees that the email system is not provided as a commercial, public, student, or individual employee "forum" within the meaning of Baca v. Moreno Valley 936 F. Supp 719, 112 Ed Law Rep. 917. Because email is not provided as a "public or limited public forum", it may be used for CAUSE communications to and from its membership for purposes related to their function as an exclusive representative pursuant to Government Code § 3540 et seq. but not in violation of Education Code § 7054 and will not be used to include those not represented by CAUSE in communications (except board members and district officials).
- 5.3 **Association Release Time.** The Association shall have ten (10) days of paid leave for its representatives to utilize for preparations for negotiations or contract management issues. These representatives shall be excused from school duties upon twenty-four (24) hours prior notice to the District.
- 5.4 **Association Rights.** Within thirty (30) days of board ratification of this Agreement, the District will provide each unit member a copy of the Agreement with appendixes of each of the forms required within the Agreement via e-mail (or a hard copy upon request from a member).

ARTICLE 6. COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS

- 6.0 Wages (2013-2014 Certificated Salary Schedule)¹
- 6.1. **Unit Members working in excess of 185 Days** All counselor work years shall be 195 days (ten more than the 185 day teacher work year). Counselors shall receive a ten (10) percent salary differential based on their salary schedule placement to be included as part of their regular pay.
- 6.2 When filled by a unit member, the High School Media/Technology specialist will work an additional fifteen (15) days for a total of 200 days. The additional days will be paid at his/her individual per diem rate as part of their regular salary.
- 6.3 When filled by a unit member, the District Media/Technology specialist will work an additional fifteen (15) days for a total of 200 days. The additional days will be paid at his/her individual per diem rate as part of their regular salary.
- 6.4 **Hourly Rate** The hourly rate of pay shall be 0.0009 x "Step 1-Column 1 of the Certificated Salary Schedule" (\$35.80) for performing District-directed duties beyond the regular workday (See Article 7, **Professional Days and Responsibility**, Sec. 7.2). The rates of pay for those positions not included in the unit are determined by the District.
- 6.5 Teachers who are requested by their site administrator to substitute will be compensated at the certificated hourly rate of pay (twenty [20] minutes or more, up to an hour, will be paid as one hour).
- 6.6 Career Increments. An additional three (3) percent of "Step 1-Column 1 of the Certificated Salary Schedule" will be granted as a career increment for each unit member who has completed fifteen years (as of Sept. 1, 1977) for full time, successful service in Carpinteria in a position included in the unit, and who is recommended by the District for the increment. An additional three (3) percent of "Step 1-Column 1 of the Certificated Salary Schedule" shall be granted after the end of each successive 5 full years of such service and recommendation thereafter to a maximum of 30 years.
- 6.7 The District agrees to provide a \$1,000.00 annual stipend for those teachers who hold the BCC or BCLAD credential and are actively employed teaching within the scope of that credential.

¹ The salary schedule was increased by three and one-quarter percent (3.25%) effective July 1, 2013.

6.8 District Credit for Participation in College/University Courses

- 6.8.1 All graduate level courses taken to earn a credential or graduate degree from a fully accredited institution in subject areas offered in the District shall be accepted with the conditions that official documentation by the State or graduate dean at the University of enrollment and acceptance in a credential program and/or graduate degree program plus requirements are submitted in advance to the District. The District may not approve the courses for credit if the above conditions (6.8.1) are not met.
- 6.8.2 All graduate level courses taken to further a teacher's pedagogical knowledge from a fully accredited institution shall be accepted.
- 6.8.3 All coursework applying to a unit member's placement on the salary schedule shall be completed prior to September 1.
- 6.8.4 Unit members will notify the District in writing (using the District form) of their intent to move on the salary schedule no later then July 31st. The District must receive an official transcript or grade report by September 1 or within sixty (60) days of completion of the course.
- 6.8.5 The District agrees to allow salary credit for lower division credits taken in accordance with existing procedures in Spanish language instruction, computer skills, or other special area identified by the District as priority needs.
- 6.9 **Extra Pay for District-Determined Positions**: Occasionally, activities which occur beyond the school day require that teachers assume responsibility for their direction. It is not advisable to rotate their direction when the instruction is highly specialized. Compensation will be based on RL's with one RL computed by .012957 x "Step 1-Column 1 of the Certificated Salary Schedule" (\$515.42). The Responsibility Level (RL) for those who regularly serve beyond the regular work day/year (See Article 7. Professional Day and Responsibility) shall be:
 - 6.9.1 Department chairpersons shall be paid according to the following Responsibility Level (RL) Schedule:

Less than full-time equivalent of three teachers in Dept	2
Three-four full-time equivalent teachers	3
Five-seven full-time equivalent teachers	4
Eight or more full-time equivalent teachers	5
Eleven or more full-time equivalent teachers	6

DEPARTMENT CHAIRS

Language Arts PE and Health

Math Business and Home Economics

Science Foreign Language Social Science Special Education

Applied and Performing Arts ESL

- 6.9.2 **Grade Level Chairs (K-6, 1 per grade) shall receive 6 RLs**. Every spring an invitation to apply for elementary Grade Level Chairs and Middle School Department Chairs for the following year will be sent to elementary and middle school teachers. Chairperson decisions will be announced before the end of the school year.
- 6.9.3 **Department Chairperson Selection Process**: A department chairperson shall be biennially nominated in writing at the March department meeting or at any time following the regular February department meeting and before the regular March department meeting. The election shall be at the regular March or April department meeting. Except as set out in the Education Code, the term of the department chair shall be two years. The vote to select the chairperson shall be weighted by the number of periods taught in that department by each employee who works in the department. Each person shall be allotted one vote for each period he or she teaches in the department.

6.9.4 Athletics

Sport	Level	Slot	R. L.
Asst. A.D.	All	1	7.0
Athletic Director	All	1	10.0
Baseball	Varsity	1	7.0
Baseball	J.V.	1	5.0
Basketball-Boys	Varsity	1	7.3
Basketball-Boys	J.V.	1	5.7
Basketball-Boys	F/S	1	5.3
Basketball-Girls	Varsity	1	7.3
Basketball-Girls	J.V.	1	5.7
Football	Head Varsity	1	8.3
Football	Head J.V.	1	6.0
Football	Varsity Assistant	2	6.0
Football	J.V. Assistant	2	5.0
Football	F/S	1	5.0
Golf-Boys	All	1	6.0
Golf-Girls	All	1	6.0

Sport	Level	Slot	R. L.
Soccer-Boys	Varsity	1	7.0
Soccer-Boys	J.V.	1	5.0
Soccer-Girls	Varsity	1	7.0
Soccer-Girls	J.V.	1	5.0
Softball	Varsity	1	7.0
Softball	J.V.	1	5.0
Swimming-Boys/Girls	All	1	6.0
Tennis-Boys	All	1	6.0
Tennis-Girls	Varsity	1	6.0
Tennis-J.V.	J.V.	1	5.0
Track-Boys/Girls	Head Varsity	1	7.3
Track-Boys/Girls	Asst.	5	5.0
Volleyball/Boys	Varsity	1	7.0
Volleyball/Boys	J.V.	1	5.0
Volleyball/Girls	Varsity	1	7.3
Volleyball/Girls	J.V.	1	5.7
Volleyball/Girls	F/S	1	5.0
Water Polo-Boys	Varsity	1	6.0
Water Polo-Boys	J.V.	1	5.0
Water Polo-Girls	Varsity	1	6.0
Water Polo-Girls	J.V.	1	5.0
X-Country-Boys/Girls	All	1	6.0

Extra Weeks: A head varsity coach and identified varsity assistant coaches (per the previous list) of teams which participate in CIF playoffs beyond the regular season will be compensated at a rate of one thirteenth (1/13) of his/her coaching salary for each week of playoff participation.

6.9.5 At the sole discretion of the District the RL factors for athletics may be increased. Any such action shall not be considered as the reopening of negotiations for any athletic RL factors.

6.9.6 Co-Curricular Assignments:

Assignment	Slots	R. L.
ASB Advisor (High School)	1	10.0
Computer Specialist (CHS)	1	10.0
Computer Specialist (CMS)	1	7.0
ASB Advisor (CMS)	1	5.0
Ag Advisor	2	5.0
Dance Show Director &		
Choreographer	1	4.0
Dance Show Producer &		
Music Director	1	4.0

Assignment	Slots	R. L.
FFA Advisor	2	5.0
Forensics	1	3.0
Band	1	2.0
Drill Team Advisor	1	2.0
Computer Specialist		
(Elementary/Continuation)		2.0-3.0
Site Website Specialist		
(Elementary)		3.0
Site Website Specialist		
(Secondary)		4.0
Other Assignments		
Specifically Authorized		
by the Board		1.0-4.0

6.10 Teachers Assigned to Teach An Additional Period (Carpinteria Middle School/Carpinteria High School)

Teachers who are assigned an additional period beyond the normal assignment at CMS and CHS shall receive one-fifth (1/5) of their annual salary prorated for the duration of the assignment.

6.11 Medical, Dental, and Optical Benefits

- 6.11.1 For the 2014-15 school year, the District will provide full family medical insurance, family dental insurance, and family optical insurance. The District agrees to continue to pay the increased costs for the existing Blue Cross (PPO Plan 90-E) and Kaiser plans, These benefits will essentially be the same as those provided in 2013-14, unless otherwise altered by a joint District and Association committee.
- 6.11.2 Unit members who continue to work full time shall be eligible for medical and dental, and optical benefits. Unit members who share a teaching assignment are also eligible for the above benefits in proportion to their assignment. In a shared teaching arrangement should a unit member work less than fifty (50) percent of the required time and therefore be ineligible to participate in the District insurance program, the District will provide a reimbursement for health insurance purchased by the unit member in an amount equivalent to the unit member's percentage employment. For example the two teachers who share a single FTE by agreement shall be treated as follows: A forty (40) percent teacher would be eligible for forty (40) percent of the benefit contribution as a reimbursement for health insurance obtained from an insurer other than the District's insurer. The sixty (60) percent teacher would be eligible for participation in the District program of benefits and have sixty (60) percent of the benefit cost paid by the District.

- 6.11.3 The District and the Association agree to form a joint committee to review all benefits areas and plans.
- 6.11.4 The District will offer the IRC 125 program.
- 6.11.5 Final selection of the insurance carriers rests solely with the District.

6.12 **Retirement Benefits**

The Governing Board recognizes the valuable service provided by certificated staff, especially those who have served in the District for a number of years. In recognition of this service, the following retirement options are available to unit members:

- 6.12.1 The retiree must have been a full-time unit member in the Carpinteria Unified School District for a minimum of 20 years to qualify.
- 6.12.2 The retiree must be at least 55 years old at the time of retirement and retire from the Carpinteria Unified School District.
- 6.12.3 The retiree must be on STRS retirement in order to obtain the benefits listed herein.
- 6.12.4 The retiree shall meet with the Superintendent to discuss the options listed below and shall sign a retirement agreement prior to receiving any benefits.
- 6.12.5 Retirement Benefits are determined at the time of retirement and are non retroactive.
- 6.12.6 **Medical Benefits**: The District shall pay the indicated amount toward a retiree's participation in the District medical plan for seven years (7) or to age sixty-five (65), whichever occurs first. A retiree or future retiree may upon retirement advise the District whether he or she wants to continue in the District's medical plan or receive a direct payment of the indicated amount. (What he would otherwise be entitled to under current practice. Currently the District pays a retiree the amount for a tiered plan.). A retiree shall accept the responsibility for any tax consequences resulting from his or her election to use funds, in the event they don't use the District plan. If the indicated amount exceeds the premium, the District will pay the premium amount.

Years of Service	Yearly Amount Paid Toward Medical
20	\$ 3,500
25	\$ 4,000
30	Total cost at time of retirement

6.12.7 **Consultant Contract**: The District may offer retirees consultant contracts on a year-to-year basis depending on the needs of the District. In such a case, the rate of pay shall be determined by the District, depending on the types of activities involved.

Article 6 revised 5/28/14

ARTICLE 7. PROFESSIONAL DAY AND RESPONSIBILITY

The Association and the District appreciate their relationship and the manner in which this Article has been implemented during the previous contract period. To that end, it is the intent of both parties to continue in that spirit and to implement this contract as per those past practices.

7.1 Work Year

7.1.1 The regular work year for unit members will be increased to 185 days by incorporating the three, now optional, staff development days into the regular calendar. A commensurate 1.6% increase will be applied to the certificated salary schedule. In the event the State declines to reimburse the District for the staff development days, the regular work year will revert to 182 days with a commensurate decrease of 1.6% to the certificated salary schedule.

7.2 **Duties and Hours**

- 7.2.1 **Regular Duties and Hours**: All unit members will work a professional day. A "professional day" recites the tasks to be done rather than the hours the tasks will be performed.
- 7.2.2 Unit members will perform the customary and routine responsibilities of their respective positions, such as but not limited to the performance of the appropriate job description, board policies, and State law.
 - 7.2.2.1 The District will provide each unit member teaching in grades K thru 5 with one release day per reporting period (Nov, Mar, May) to administer student assessments.
- 7.2.3 Unit members will be available to conference with parents by appointment and to conference in regularly scheduled conference days.
 - 7.2.3.1 If a unit member is absent during a regularly scheduled conference day due to a verified illness or injury, the site administrator (in collaboration with the unit member involved) will make a good faith effort to facilitate the rescheduling of conferences.
- 7.2.4 Unit members will be available before and after the instructional day as needed to provide additional student support and for routine communication and planning with other unit members and administrators.
- 7.2.5 Unit members will be available for conferences during the instructional day on periods of release time for preparation except by prior arrangement with an administrator.

- 7.2.6 Unit members will be available for key site events such as back to school nights and open houses for community members and parents. These events will normally be identified at the beginning of the school year.
- 7.2.7 Unit members will be available for faculty meetings (a District determined meeting of the entire faculty or some portion of that faculty for special purposes at a school at which unit members serving at that school are required to attend).
 - 7.2.7.1 The District agrees to make a good faith effort to minimize the number and length of these meetings and to utilize alternative methods to disseminate information.
 - 7.1.7.2 The District agrees to minimize meetings during the scheduled teacher workday at the beginning of each semester.
- 7.2.8 Unit members will be available for categorical project meetings, i.e. a District-determined meeting which directly involves members of the unit in planning, writing, implementing and evaluating a project of a specialized nature.
 - 7.2.8.1 The District and CAUSE agree that unpaid adjunct duties will be shared equitably among all unit members.
- 7.3 All full-time (part-time prorated as appropriate) teacher members of the unit at the High School and Middle School shall be scheduled for one preparation/consultation period for each regular full day of teaching. The period shall be the same length as the regular teaching class period. It is anticipated that the preparation period will be utilized for school-related activities and normally spent on campus.

ARTICLE 8. TRANSFER AND REASSIGNMENT

- 8.1 A transfer is defined as a change in work site (school). A reassignment is a change in grade level or subject.
 - 8.1.2 Either the District or a unit member may initiate the transfer assignment or reassignment process. After consultation with the unit member, the District may transfer a unit member to best meet the needs of the District's educational programs.
 - 8.1.2.1 Teachers will be provided the opportunity to indicate preferences from available openings and to represent their position on alternatives to the transfer to the Superintendent or designee prior to involuntary transfer. Prior the making a transfer or reassignment, the District shall first ask for qualified volunteer(s). In the event an applicant is found, the District will use the criteria in 8.1.2.3 to select the candidate. Each applicant will be contacted by the principal of the school with the vacancy and make the provisions for an interview. Within a reasonable time, that principal will notify the applicant of the status of the transfer.
 - 8.1.2.2 Teachers will not be transferred or reassigned arbitrarily and capriciously, nor will transfer or reassignment be used as a disciplinary measure.
 - 8.1.2.3 When teachers either request voluntary transfer or the District determines it necessary to involuntarily transfer a teacher, the District will apply the following criteria in determining who shall be transferred. If more than one teacher is qualified for the position according to the criteria below then the applicant with the most seniority in the District will be selected:²
 - Credentials, to include language development and special education
 - Seniority (district wide)
 - Ability to contribute to adjunct responsibilities
 - Identified needs of the instructional programs
 - Evaluations, including when the move will give the employee an opportunity for improvement
 - Prior involuntary transfer or reassignment
 - 8.1.3 A unit member may request a transfer (provided the unit member is properly credentialed) by submitting a District transfer form on or before March 1 or when a position becomes available up to June 30.

² See March 5, 2007 minutes for clarification.

- 8.1.4 Criteria for selection will be the same as those set out in this Agreement.
- 8.1.5 When a certificated vacancy occurs (a vacant position is one within the unit for which a new employee may be hired), the District shall communicate that vacancy via e-mail to all unit members. Vacancy notices will also be posted on the District web site and, during the summer recess, such notices will also be mailed to the home address of any employee who has filed a request for transfer and has submitted a written request for such notices. Until July 15, those employees applying shall receive consideration for placement prior to consideration of outside applicants. Unit members shall have the opportunity to apply for such vacancies within the timelines as determined by the District. If more than one applicant is fully qualified for the position according to section 8.1.2.3 then the applicant with seniority in the District shall be selected.
- 8.1.6 If a unit member applies for a vacancy and is not transferred, upon request of that unit member, he/she shall be provided the District's rationale *in writing* for denial of such transfer.
- 8.1.7 The District will make every effort not to involuntary transfer an individual teacher more than once in three (3) years.
- 8.2 **Assistance with Moving Materials**: The District shall provide assistance to a unit member being moved to a new classroom. Such assistance shall consist of providing boxes, supplies and assistance with the physical move. The date and time of the move will be prearranged with the teacher.
 - 8.2.1 If a transfer or reassignment occurs during the school year, the District shall provide the employee with up to two (2) workdays of release time to move and prepare for the new assignment.
- 8.3 This contract will comply if it is relevant with Education Code § 35036.

ARTICLE 9. EVALUATION

- 9.1 The District shall evaluate all unit members on the forms as contained in Appendix B in accordance with the requirements of Education Code section 44660, et seq. Normally, probationary employees will be evaluated on an annual basis and permanent employees every other year except that permanent employees with ten (10) or more years of service in the District will be evaluated on a five year cycle pursuant to the provisions of Education Code § 44664 (a) (3).³
- 9.2 By the end of the 4th week of school, the evaluator will provide an overview of the evaluation sequence, as specified in this Article, and notify certificated staff whose normal evaluation will occur that year. By October 31 the certificated person and the evaluator shall meet to discuss how the California Standards for the Teaching Profession (CSTP) will be achieved. The evaluator will discuss with each evaluatee a time line of events and deadlines within the evaluation process to provide a comprehensive overview. They will also identify a specific date and time for the first formal observation. All formal observations require a follow-up conference and observation report. If either the evaluator or the evaluatee requests a preconference formal observation, it will be scheduled prior to the observation. A formal summative evaluation and conference will occur prior to March 15 for probationary employees and not later than thirty (30) calendar days before the end of the year for permanent employees.
- 9.3 Informal observations may be unscheduled, and the evaluators are encouraged to be in classroom frequently. Informal observations are defined as any physical observation not specifically scheduled according to date, place, time, or time frame.
- 9.4 When the evaluator determines that an issue needs to be brought to the evaluatee's attention because of a perceived professional deficiency that could result in a critical or derogatory comment in the summative evaluation, the evaluator shall provide written feedback to the certficated person within seven (7) working days of the observation. Written feedback can be an email, a personal note, an observation report, a conference summary memorandum, or any other format that provides the teacher notice of the observed behavior, how it impacts students and directives. If the Evaluator fails to provide written feedback on the observed issue, the District agrees not to use the information from that specific informal observation for summative evaluation purposes. The evaluatee may respond to written feedback on the observed issue.
- 9.5 A teacher may request observations not included in the original evaluation plan. An evaluator may conduct additional formal observations. Should there be more than one formal observation, the observations would alternate between those scheduled at a

³ At least every five years for personnel with permanent status who have been employed at least 10 years with the school district, are highly qualified, as defined in 20 U.S.C. § 7801, and whose previous evaluation rated the employee as meeting or exceeding standards, if the evaluator and certificated employee being evaluated agree. The certificated employee or the evaluator may withdraw consent at any time.

- specific date and time and another where the evaluatee would be noticed that the observation would occur within a one week period. Unscheduled informal observations are unrestricted except for the requirement in 9.2 for written feedback when teaching performance deficiencies are observed.
- 9.6 The evaluatee shall receive a copy of any critical or derogatory information that is to be placed in his or her personnel file as part of the evaluation process. The evaluatee may respond in writing and have his or her comments attached to the summative evaluation or any other written information placed in his or her personnel file.
- 9.7 An unsatisfactory evaluation would be one that rates two or more domains as not meeting standards or a single domain that is rated as not meeting standards over two consecutive evaluations. A majority of the elements within a domain must be rated satisfactory for the domain to be satisfactory.
- 9.8 Peer Assitance and Review (PAR) is a joint program created by the Distrct and CAUSE in Appendix C. The PAR Agreement is hereby incorporated herein as part of this Agreement (Appendix C) and can only be changed, modified, or deleted through a negotiated agreement between CAUSE and the District. The parties agree that the PAR panel is responsible for appointing the consulting teacher according to the guidelines. The Parties agree that the consulting teacher will be the designated evaluator until the PAR process has been concluded. The Principal/Evaluator will delegate to the consulting teacher the responsibility to conduct the referred teacher's evaluation while the evaluatee remains in PAR, and the District and CAUSE will accept the consulting teachers's evaluation as meeting the obligations to continuously evaluate certificated employees as required by the Education Code. When the consulting teacher performs that role of evaluator, he or she will otherwise adhere to the requirements of the PAR agreement and Article 9.
- 9.9 An evaluatee may be represented in the meetings set out below where he or she reasonably believes that he or she may be subject to discipline or otherwise evaluated as unsatisfactory. There are potentially four or more meetings if there are multiple formal observations required during the evaluation process: the first to review how the CSTP's will be implemented and a description of the process of evaluation, including the scheduling of the formal evaluation's date and time; the second, a pre-conference before a formal observation if requested by either the evaluator or evaluatee; the third, to discuss each formal observation; and the final; a meeting where the summative evaluation is provided. When an evaluatee is notified that he or she will receive an unsatisfactory evaluation that will result in a PAR referral, he or she may be represented. When an evaluatee feels uncomfortable because of previous instances where the evaluator has provided written feedback of deficient performance, the evaluatee may be represented.

Article 9 revised 2/1/13

ARTICLE 10: PERSONNEL FILES

- 10.1 Personnel File Contents and Inspection. Materials in personnel files of employees that may serve as a basis for affecting the status of their employment are to be made available for the inspection of the person involved. This material is not to include ratings, reports or records that (1) were obtained prior to the employment of the person involved, (2) were prepared by identifiable examination committee members, or (3) were obtained in connection with a promotional examination. Every employee shall have the right to inspect these materials during business hours upon request, provided that the employee meets his daily professional obligations.
- 10.2 Information of a derogatory nature, except ratings or reports received prior to the employment shall not be entered or filed unless and until the employee is given notice and an opportunity to review and comment thereon. Notice and opportunity means the employee will be provided a signed, dated copy of the information to be placed in the personnel file. The employee will be provided the opportunity to acknowledge receipt by signature. The signature of the employee does not mean the employee agrees with the information. The review shall take place during normal business hours and the employee shall be released for this purpose without salary reduction.
- 10.3 An employee shall have the right to enter, and have attached to any derogatory statement, his own comments thereon.
- 10.4 Upon written authorization by an employee, a representative of CAUSE shall be permitted to examine materials in said employee's personnel file.

ARTICLE 11. SHARED DECISION MAKING

- 11.1 Teachers shall be included on various District level committees which deal with instructional issues (i.e. curriculum committees, textbook adoption committees, inservice committees, summer curriculum workshops, etc.)
- 11.2 Teachers shall be included on various District level committees which deal with major District issues (i.e. District Facilities Committee, District Budget Committee, Goals Setting Workshop, Calendar Committee, etc.)
- 11.3 Teachers shall be included on various interview committees to provide input to the District as to preferred candidates (i.e. department chairs on teacher selection panels, teachers on instructional aide interview panels, teachers/chairs on administrator selection panels, etc.)
- 11.4 Teachers shall be included on various site level committees as determined by the principal with advice from the faculty (i.e. Site Council, Leadership Teams, SIP day inservice planning, etc.)
- 11.5 Teachers are encouraged to participate on various County and State committees as determined by the individual teacher with support from the District.

Article 11 revised 6/12/13

ARTICLE 12: DISCIPLINE SHORT OF DISMISSAL

- 12.1 The District has the right and responsibility to take disciplinary action where there are instances of unprofessional conduct, or refusal to obey the school laws of the State or reasonable regulations prescribed for the government of public schools by the State Board of Education, the Credentialing Commission, or by the Governing Board of the Carpinteria Unified School District, or by reasonable school-level administrative rules, or by the requirements of the negotiated agreement.
- 12.2 Discipline short of dismissal is to be for just cause, progressive and corrective. In less serious incidents, the conduct shall have been initially noted by oral discussion about the problem and direction provided. If further action is required, memoranda (formal and informal) that clarify the expectations of the administrator and set out direction for the unit member will be required. An informal memorandum would memorialize oral discussions not intended to go to the personnel file, but these memoranda would be retained in the administrator's file for two years to be available in subsequent disciplinary matters. The informal memorandum shall provide the Education Code § 44031 notice to the employee, be signed and dated by the administrator drafting it.
- 12.3 Progressive discipline includes matching the violation with the repercussion to insure that discipline is corrective not punitive. Normally, the sequence will be oral warning, written warning (not in personnel file), written reprimand (in personnel file), and suspension. CAUSE may grieve the disciplinary action when the proposed discipline is for suspension without pay for up to fifteen (15) days. Suspension beyond fifteen days is beyond the jurisdiction of this process. This procedure is intended to comply with the requirements of Government Code § 3543.2.
- 12.4 The first level of intervention from an administrator to a unit member will be to orally advise the unit member of behaviors that could lead to discipline and provide direction for positive action. Conferences that could lead to discipline allow for representation if the unit member requests (Weingarten).
- 12.5 This article is subject to arbitration pursuant to the Level III in the grievance procedure when the proposed suspension without pay is for fifteen or fewer days Prior to the arbitration, the District and CAUSE shall meet in a mandatory settlement conference.
- 12.6 This article shall not be construed as modifying Education Code § 44930 et seq. except as disciplinary actions may be introduced in support of that process.

ARTICLE 13. LEAVE PROVISIONS

13.1 Sick Leave

- 13.1.1 In any fiscal year, a member of the unit shall earn paid sick leave time at the rate of one day for each full month of paid service on an unlimited accumulated basis.
- 13.1.2 A part-time member shall earn sick leave and be paid sick leave benefits in direct proportion to which such assignment relates to full time.
- 13.1.3 When a unit member is absent from duties because of verified illness or injury, whether or not the absence arises out of or in the course of the employment, said member is paid full salary for such portion of the earned current and accumulated sick leave benefits.
- 13.1.4 Per Ed Code 44977 (a) During each school year, when a person employed in a position requiring certification qualifications has exhausted all available sick leave, including all accumulated sick leave, and continues to be absent from his or her duties on account of illness or accident for an additional period of five school months, whether or not the absence arises out of or in the course of the employment of the employee, the amount deducted from the salary due him or her for any of the additional five months in which the absence occurs shall not exceed the sum that is actually paid a substitute employee employed to fill his or her position during his or her absence or, if no substitute employee was employed, the amount that would have been paid to the substitute had he or she been employed. The school district shall make every reasonable effort to secure the services of a substitute employee. (b) For purposes of subdivision (a): (1) The sick leave, including accumulated sick leave, and the five-month period shall run consecutively. (2) An employee shall not be provided more than one five-month period per illness or accident. However, if a school year terminates before the five-month period is exhausted, the employee may take the balance of the fivemonth period in a subsequent school year.

13.2 Industrial Accident Leave

- 13.2.1 Allowable leave shall be for not less than sixty (60) working days during which the schools of the District are required to be in session or when the member of the unit would otherwise have been performing work for the District in any one fiscal year for the same accident. The accident must have been reported within 24 hours of its occurrence, on the form provided by the District. It must be verified by the insurer as a bona fide injury arising out of and in the course of service in the District.
- 13.2.2 Allowable leave shall not be accumulated from year to year.
- 13.2.3 Industrial accident or illness leave shall commence on the first day of absence.

- 13.2.4 When a member is absent from duties on account of an industrial accident or illness, he/she shall be paid such portion of the salary due for any month in which the absence occurs, which when added to a temporary disability indemnity under Division 4 or Division 4.5 of the Labor Code, will result in a payment of not more than full salary.
- 13.2.5 Industrial accident or illness leave shall be reduced by one day for each day of authorized absence regardless of a temporary disability indemnity award.
- 13.2.6 When an industrial accident or illness leave overlaps into the next fiscal year, the member shall be entitled to only the amount of unused leave due for the same illness or injury.
- 13.2.7 Upon termination of the industrial accident or illness leave, the member shall be entitled to benefits provided in Education Code sections 44978 and 44983, and for the purposes of the Sections, the absence shall be deemed to have commenced on the date of termination of the industrial accident or illness leave, provided that, if the member continues to receive temporary disability indemnity, election may be made to take as much of the accumulated sick leave which, then added to temporary disability indemnity, will result in a payment of not more than the full salary.
- 13.2.8 The District may, by policy, provide for such additional leave-of-absence for industrial accident or illness as it deems appropriate.
- 13.2.9 During any paid leave-of-absence, the member shall endorse to the District the temporary disability indemnity checks received on account of the industrial accident or illness. The District in turn, shall issue the member appropriate salary warrants for payment of salary and shall deduct normal retirement and other authorized contributions.
- 13.2.10 A member's industrial accident leave shall be suspended automatically for any period during which he/she is not within the State unless he/she has obtained prior approval of the Board of Education for absence from the State.

13.3 **Bereavement Leave**

13.3.1 Any member is allowed a leave-of-absence not to exceed three school days, or five if out-of-state travel is required, on full pay, when such absence is occasioned by reason of death in the immediate family. "Member of the immediate family," as used in Article 13, means the father, mother, grandmother, grandfather, or a grandchild of the member or of the member's spouse or domestic partner, and the spouse or domestic partner's son, son-in-law, daughter, daughter-in-law, brother, or sister of the member, or any relative or dependent living in the immediate household of the member.

13.3.2 Bereavement leave is not applicable while a member is on sick leave, scheduled vacation, unpaid leave-of-absence, or during unscheduled work days for members.

13.4 **Personal Necessity**

- 13.4.1 Up to seven (7) days of leave for personal necessity leave (to be charged against sick leave) may be used for circumstances which are serious in nature, cannot reasonably be expected to be disregarded, and require the attention of the unit member during the assigned hours of service. If more time is necessary, the unit member may request an extension from the District.
- 13.4.2 A unit member shall not be required to secure advance permission for leave taken for any of the following reasons:
 - 13.4.2.1 Death or illness of a member of his or her immediate family.
 - 13.4.2.2 Accident, involving his or her person or property, or the person or property of a member of his or her immediate family.
- 13.4.3 Except in urgent circumstances, a unit member is expected to obtain advance permission for all other uses of personal necessity leave. Upon return from leave, a unit member will complete the required forms verifying the absence.
- 13.4.4 Unit members may not take personal necessity leave for concerted activities, on the day before or after holidays, for paid employment, or for vacation.
- 13.4.5 Unit members are entitled to use up to six (6) weeks of earned sick leave for formal adoption or foster care placement.

13.5 **Personal Business Leave**

- 13.5.1 A unit member may use up to two (2) days per school year of accumulated sick leave for personal business. These days may be used for any purpose at the unit member's discretion.
- 13.5.2 Three (3) days advance notice shall be required. Such leave may not be used during the first or last week of any semester.
- 13.5.3 The maximum number of unit members at each work site who shall be granted Personal Business Leave on any one day is based on the number of full time teachers on that site as follows:

Numbers of Teachers	Maximum Number of
On Site	Personal Business Days
1 - 10	1
11-20	2
21 +	3

13.5.4 The site administration is required to notify the unit member within twenty-four (24) hours of the request as to whether the request is approved.

13.6 **Military Leave**

- 13.6.1 Within twenty-four (24) hours of receipt of military orders which will require a leave the member is to furnish a copy to the principal, along with a letter which states that: The leave is required and there are no alternatives; a reasonable attempt (include documentation) has been made to seek rescheduling to a time when school service will not be interrupted.
- 13.6.2 Military leave of absence shall be granted and compensated in accordance with the Military and Veterans Code, Sections 389 and 395.

13.7 **Sabbatical Leave**

- 13.7.1 Sabbatical leaves-of-absence for one semester or a year may be granted by the District for full-time professional study to any certificated person contemplating seven years of additional service, who has been employed full time by the Carpinteria Board of Education for not less than seven consecutive prior years under regular credential. Teaching service is of the nature which allows time for study; therefore, only requests which justify extended time will be considered.
- 13.7.2 The selection of a member to participate rests solely with the District. Important considerations are: Probable good which will accrue to the District; availability of a substitute meeting District-determined criteria, and the application date (which must be at least six months prior to the requested leave date).

13.8 **Maternity Leave**

- 13.8.1 Unit members are entitled to use earned sick leave for disabilities caused or contributed to by pregnancy, miscarriage, childbirth, and recovery therefrom on the same terms and conditions governing leaves of absence from other illness or medical disability. Such leave shall not be used for child care, child rearing, or preparation for child bearing, but shall be limited to those disabilities as set forth above.
- 13.8.2 Notification by a physician indicating the disability and inability to perform regularly assigned duties must be submitted to the superintendent at least 30 days

- prior to the date of the requested leave, stating the expected date of delivery, and anticipated period of disability.
- 13.8.3 In the event a unit member, who is or was pregnant, wishes to remain absent from duties beyond the period of verified physical disability, an unpaid leave may be granted at the discretion of the District for a maximum of the balance of the school year in which the disability absence for confinement ends.
- 13.8.4 The major purpose of these regulations is to enable the District to make sound educational plans concerning personnel and the program of education. The assignment upon return shall be determined solely by the District.

13.9 **Jury Duty Leave**

- 13.9.1 The District agrees to grant to unit members regularly called for jury duty in the manner provided by law, leave of absence without loss of pay for time the unit member is required to perform the duty during the unit member's regularly assigned working hours. Unit members, so called for jury duty, shall submit a written notice along with a copy of the summons to the District upon receiving said summons from officers of the Court. The District shall pay the unit member the salary and the unit member is to remit to the District (within thirty (30) days after receipt of check) the amount received for jury duty, less the amount awarded by the Court for mileage. Unit members shall be at work during any day or portion thereof in which jury duty services are not required. The District may require verification of jury duty date(s) time(s) prior to or subsequent to providing jury duty compensation.
- 13.9.2 The District reserves the right to request to have any unit member excused from jury service in the event it determines that said jury service would entail hardship on the public served by the unit member.
- 13.9.3 A unit member who receives notice to appear for jury duty during teaching days may postpone jury duty to non-teaching days (i.e. during summer) and shall be compensated at the current daily substitute rate for each day of jury duty served. The procedure for such postponement and compensation is as follows:
 - 13.9.3.1 Attach a copy of the original jury duty notice, written statement concerning postponement, and signed official court validation for each day of jury duty served.
 - 13.9.3.2 Forward the above to the Superintendent
 - 13.9.3.3 Payment will be made in the next regular payroll cycle.

For purposes of this article, summer school will be considered teaching days for unit members teaching a full day summer school. The District may require further verification of any/all of the above mentioned documentation.

13.10.1 Shared Certificated Contracts (Job Sharing) Individual bargaining unit members wishing to job share during the succeeding school year shall file a request with the Superintendent by February 1 of the year preceding the proposed job share implementation. Job sharing by teachers must be approved annually by the Board of Education. The written request will indicate the names of the employees proposing to job share and indicate how they propose the job position. The request must also show the manner in which the employees intend to share the job sharing position. It is understood that the benefits equivalent to salary and benefits to one full-time employee will be shared by the two job sharing employees. The request must show details of how the employees intend to coordinate their work, insuring that the educational continuity of the class will be preserved. These details will include a calendar of work days for each teacher. Duties would be shared between the teachers in a manner that would be developed and acceptable to the teachers themselves. The District retains the right to make final decisions about assignments and placement. Examples of duties to be shared are listed below and are not intended to be inclusive.

Duties shared by teachers:

Daily teaching/instruction
Planning and preparation
Student discipline
Evaluation of student progress
Student record keeping and report cards
Formal Parent conferences (will be attended by both teachers)
Faculty meetings (attendance will be shared equally)
Teacher work days (will be attended by both teachers at no
additional pay)
Other duties as assigned

13.10.2 Configurations – Shared Certificated Contracts (Job Sharing) The normal expectation of a job share is a 50/50 configuration. Job sharing will follow one of the following configurations:

13.10.2.1	One semester each
13.10.2.2	21/2 days each week during each week, i.e., one employee teaches two days, the employees each share a day, and the other employee
	teaches two days.
13.10.2.3	2-3 days per week combination. One employee teaches three days
	and the other employee teaches two.
13.10.2.4	Daily morning sessions will be covered by one teacher and
	afternoon sessions by the other teacher.
13.10.2.5	Some combination of the above agreed to by the employees and
	approved by the principal.

- 13.10.3 Configurations Shared Certificated Contracts (Job Sharing) Approval of job share requests shall be determined by an assessment of the proposal, as well as meeting the needs of the students, the school and the job share applicants. Approval of a job share request shall also be determined by the District's ability to obtain a suitable replacement for the vacancy created by the job share, should it be necessary to fill said vacancy. Teachers requesting a job share will designate on their request whether they are willing to change schools in order to job share. All job share requests shall be considered at the same time after the February 1 due date. Applicants will be notified of their request status by April 1 of the year preceding the job share implementation. If a job share request is denied, the superintendent must cite explicit reasons described in this article.. If a denial is submitted for reasons relating to this article, the applicants have one week to amend and re-submit their job share request. The superintendent will have up to two weeks to give a final decision and will, once again, provide explicit reasons if the amended request is denied. If a job share request is denied, and if the teacher desires a leave of absence, the teacher shall request the leave within two weeks of the denial.
- 13.10.4 Mitigations Shared Certificated Contracts (Job Sharing) Should one of the individuals in the job share arrangement not be able to complete the agreement or fulfill his/her obligations, the other member will have one month to attempt to find a satisfactory solution to the problems created by the loss of a job share partner. The solutions for purposes of this section must be satisfactory to the school principal. Should the solutions be unsatisfactory, or should the remaining partner not be able to find a solution, the District may require that the remaining partner return to full-time teaching to fulfill the obligation that the two job share employees had agreed to share.
- 13.10.5 Leave Provisions Shared Certificated Contracts (Job Sharing) While in a job share arrangement, each employee will be considered on leave of absence for the portion and duration the he/she has given up of his/her prior assignment in order to enter the job share arrangement. There shall be no loss of benefits to a job share employee other than the shared wages and health and welfare benefits he/she has agreed to share with the other job share employee.
- 13.10.6 Termination of Shared Certificated Contracts (Job Sharing) When a job share arrangement terminates, the two teachers may agree, with the approval of the principal, that one of them will assume the class assignment that they have been job sharing and that the other may take a voluntary transfer/reassignment selected from a list of openings within the District. Should the two teachers fail to reach agreement, the teacher with the greatest seniority in the District will choose as to whether he/she will assume the class assignment they have been sharing, or take a transfer/reassignment selected from a list of openings within the District. In either case, the teacher taking the transfer/reassignment shall have no privileges or

benefits, over any other unit member, greater than those obtained through the provisions of the article on transfer/reassignment.

13.10.7 Salaries and Benefits paid to Teachers Salaries will be pro-rated with each teacher being compensated at his/her place on the salary schedule. The normal division of a full time job would be 50-50 with each teacher being paid for at the per diem rate established as follows:

(Teacher's Individual Annual Salary) = Per Diem

#of Work Days

Teachers participating in the job sharing program shall receive year for year credit for the purpose of salary schedule advancement.

Benefits and sick leave will be pro-rated for each teacher based on the percentage of time worked. The teacher will receive full per diem for those workdays, at the discretion of the principal, that are service days beyond the basic agreement. Should it become necessary for one of the job sharing participants to be the substitute for the other, the compensation for this service shall be at the sub rate.

13.11 Other Types of Leaves (non-paid)

- 13.11.1 Only a member who is a regular, permanent employee may be granted a leave-ofabsence (without pay) for reasons of health or study. Such leaves shall be approved only when it is considered by the District to be in the best interest of the District and the students. Interruption of service is discouraged and leaves of these types are rarely granted as the typical member work year allows time for them. Paid sick leave time is not earned, nor are employee benefits allowed. The period is considered a break in service for salary purposes. Absence will only be granted for up to the close of the school year of the leave (except as required by law). All certificated personnel granted a leave by the District according to this section must return (except by mutual agreement by the Board of Education and the employee) to the District for a minimum of one year's service. The request and justification for a leave are to be directed in writing to the Superintendent. Prior to submission of the request to the Board of Education, provisions for the terms of the leave will be made by the requestee and the Superintendent (duration, plans for return to the District, reason, staffing during absence, etc.). After District approval of a leave and its provisions the action shall be binding and should the grantee not meet the provisions, it shall be grounds for dismissal.
 - 13.11.1.1 **Health**: An application for leave of absence for reasons of personal health in excess of time for which sick leave benefits are due must be supported by the written recommendations of a medical doctor.
 - 13.11.1.2 **Study**: An application for leave of absence for professional study must be supported by a written statement indicating what and

where study is to be undertaken, along with specific objectives which, when met, will materially benefit the District.

- 13.11.1.3 **Child Rearing**: An application for a leave of absence for child rearing must be supported by a written statement indicating the time period, school site, and position involved.
- 13.11.2 A unit member may be allowed a leave for personal reasons under the following conditions:
 - 13.11.2.1 It is necessary for the welfare of the individual and it cannot be reasonably scheduled for another date/time.
 - 13.11.2.2 The full per diem rate for the member will be deducted from the regular salary.
 - 13.11.2.3 Prior notification (at least three school days when possible) and approval (program continuity and effectiveness considered) by the principal or other management person designated by him/her is required. In all cases a complete lesson plan, along with classroom organization information are available.
- 13.12 **General Requirements**. All applicants for a year's leave (other than leaves which are mandatory and could be foreseen), shall request consideration by March 1 on a form provided by the District. The District is the sole determiner of approval or disapproval of requests. It will consider leave requests by using these and other factors it deems appropriate.
 - 13.12.1 Benefits to the students, program of education and District operation.
 - 13.12.2 Liabilities to the students, program of education and District operation. The Superintendent is to be notified by certified letter by March 1 of the year of the leave of plans to return in the ensuing school year. Failure to do so constitutes abandonment of position.
- 13.13 The assignment upon return from any leave shall be determined solely by the District.

13.14 Sick Leave Donation Program

- 13.14.1 In the event of a catastrophic illness or injury to a unit member or member of the unit member's family, a sick leave bank may be established.
- 13.14.2 Catastrophic illness or injury is defined to mean an illness or injury that is expected to incapacitate a unit member or members of the family for an extended period of time.

- 13.14.3 Family member is defined as the unit member's spouse, parents, parent-in-laws, siblings, children, and step-children.
- 13.14.4 A Bank will allow unit members to donate up to two (2) days a year of accumulated sick leave to another unit member. A unit member who chooses to donate:
 - 13.14.4.1 must provide written notice to the District Office of the intent to transfer the accumulated sick leave days (on District form);
 - 13.14.4.2 must donate in full, one day increments up to a maximum of two (2) sick leave days;
 - 13.14.4.3 must acknowledge in writing (on District form) that the unit member understands that he/she cannot revoke the donation of the accumulated sick leave days because all transfers to accumulated sick leave days are irrevocable and binding. The donating unit member must sign and date this acknowledgement;
 - 13.14.4.4 must maintain a limit of ten (10) days of sick leave.
- 13.14.5 The sick leave donation bank can only go into effect after the unit member has exhausted all accrued sick leave.
- 13.14.6 The unit member who is requesting a donation of leave for catastrophic illness:
 - 13.14.6.1 must request in writing to the Superintendent that accumulated sick leave days be donated and the method of notification;
 - 13.14.6.2 must provide verification of the catastrophic illness or injury.
- 13.14.7 A District committee composed of two (2) Association members selected by the Association President and two (2) members selected by the Superintendent will determine, by unanimous vote, whether the unit member is eligible to receive the donated days.
- 13.14.8 The unit member receiving the donated accumulated sick leave days can only receive donated accumulated sick leave days for a maximum of fifty (50) days in any one contract year.
- 13.14.9 Only donated days that are used by the receiving unit member shall be transferred from the donating union member's accumulated sick leave.

ARTICLE 14. TEACHER ON SPECIAL ASSIGNMENT "TOSA"

- 14.1 A TOSA is a non-administrative position within the District designed to provide assistance to teachers and administrators on professional/curriculum development, standards based goals and objectives, or other District programs. such as but not limited to common core, instructional methodology, data acquisition and consideration, feedback on instruction **not intended for use in the formal evaluation**, technology and curriculum, and other matters assisting District instructional programs.
- 14.2 The position is not intended to be a permanent position and may serve as a career ladder for instructional leadership or as an opportunity to do important instructional work for which the teacher applicant has substantial ability but with a planned return to the classroom. TOSAs will be selected and retained on an "as needed" basis. Reentry into the classroom will be planned to provide maximum opportunity for the TOSA and to minimize any transitional disruption. TOSA wishes on reentry shall be respected to the degree that it is possible and practical. Upon request at reentry, a TOSA will be returned to his or her site provided that an assignment is available. Mike asked about the meaning of available. If there is a temp there, then the employee would have a right to that position. If not there, then the contract would control movement of staff.
- 14.3 A TOSA is an exempt employee as it pertains to wage and hour laws whose basic hours may require extended hours for meetings and off site responsibility. Administrators whose responsibility it is to supervise TOSAs should be mindful of the work schedules of TOSA's and allow for flexible scheduling when it is appropriate in order not to exceed a forty hour work week.
- 14.4 A TOSA shall be paid on the current teacher salary schedule based upon standard years of training and experience and may be assigned additional days if Board approved.
- 14.5 A TOSA position will be advertised internally and recruited prior to employment from the outside. Vacancy notices will include a specific description of the tasks to be performed and set out the preferred and required qualifications.
- 14.6. It is intended that this language recognizes and memorializes the District and CAUSE's requirement to negotiate compensation, job description, opportunity for unit member access to TOSA positions, and hours. The creation of TOSA positions outside of the agreement above shall be negotiated by the parties, prior to a recommendation to the school board.

TOSA Article added to contract on 11/19/13

ARTICLE 15. ORGANIZATIONAL SECURITY

- 15.1 The District and the Association recognize the right of employees to form, join, and participate in lawful activities of employee organizations and the equal alternative right of employees to refuse to form, join, and participate in employee organizations. Neither party shall exert pressure on or discriminate against any employee for exercising or not exercising the membership, participation or organizational activities rights guaranteed herein or for membership or nonmembership in the Association.
- 15.2 The District shall deduct from the pay of Association members and pay to the Association the normal and regular monthly Association membership dues as voluntarily authorized in writing by the employee on the District form subject to the following conditions:
 - 15.2.1 Such deduction shall be made only upon submission of the District form to the District Payroll Department, duly completed and executed by the employee.
 - 15.2.2 The District shall not be obligated to implement any new Association monthly dues deduction until the pay period commencing not less than thirty (30) workdays after such submission.
 - 15.2.3 The District shall, on a monthly basis, draw its order upon the funds of the District in favor of the Association for an amount equal to the total of the dues deduction made during the month and shall furnish the Association a list of all employees affected, together with the amount deducted for each.
 - 15.2.4 An employee may terminate Association membership or voluntary dues deduction authorization at any time, but will still be subject to the service fee provisions of 12.3. said deduction cancellation shall be effective on the pay period commencing thirty (30) workdays after written submission.
 - 15.2.5 Upon appropriate written authorization from the employee, the District shall deduct from the salary of any employee and make appropriate remittance for credit Association, savings bonds, charitable donations, or any other plans or programs approved by the District.
 - 15.2.6 The Association agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the District, its members, and each member of the management against any and all costs, losses, or damages because of civil or other action arising from the administration and implementation of these provisions. Any clerical errors will be corrected by the party making the error, with the provision that if any such dues are deducted from the pay of any employee and remitted to the Association, and the employee and the district shall not be liable for any refund. The Association agrees to furnish any information needed by the District to fulfill these provisions.

15.3 **Service Fee**

- 15.3.1 Any certificated member who is not a member of the Association, or who does not make application for membership within thirty (30) days of the effective date of this section or within thirty (30) days of the commencement of assigned duties shall pay a service fee to the Association. A certificated employee may become an Association member at any time by following the procedure in 14.2 above.
- 15.3.2 The obligation to pay a service fee may be met by a monthly deduction from the certificated employee's direct payment to the Association using a method established by the Association, or if the certificated employee is a religious objector, by complying with 14.3.6 through 14.3.9.
- 15.3.3 If a certificated employee does not make application for membership within the prescribed time, make arrangement with the Association for direct payment of the service fee, or submit proof of payment to a charitable organization as provided herein below, the Association has a responsibility to inform the certificated employee of their contractual obligations. If after proper notice the certificated employee does not comply with the provisions of this Article, then the Association shall notify the District and supply the District with proof of notice to the unit member. Upon receipt of such notice and proof, the district shall withhold the service fee from the unit member's salary and submit such fee to the Association as provided in 14.4 below.
- 15.3.4 The service fee shall equal an amount not to exceed the standard initiation fee, periodic dues and general assessments of the Association and shall be used only for those purposes permitted by law.
- 15.3.5 Any certificated employee choosing to challenge the manner in which the chargeable portion of the service fee has been calculated shall do so according to the Service Fee Appeal Procedure established by the Association pursuant to the regulations of the Public Employment Relations Board.
- 15.3.6 Notwithstanding the above, any certificated employee who is a member of a religious body whose traditional tenets or teachings include objections to joining or financially supporting employee organizations shall not be required to join or pay a service fee. However, any certificated employee who qualified as a religious objector shall pay an amount equal to the service fee to one of the three following nonreligious, nonlabor organization charitable funds:
 - 15.3.6.1 Carpinteria Educational Foundation15.3.6.2 American Cancer Society15.3.6.3 Special Olympics
- 15.3.7 A certificated employee paying an amount equal to the service fee to one of the organizations listed above shall submit proof of such payments each year to the

- Association. If such proof is not submitted in a timely manner, then upon receipt of notice and proof from the Association, the District shall implement the provisions of 14.4.3 above.
- 15.3.8 It is recognized that the Association, as exclusive representative of all certificated employees, is required to represent all such employees fairly without regard to Association membership or non-membership. However, any employee who holds religious objections pursuant to 14.3.6 above, who requests the Association to use the grievance procedure or arbitration procedure on his or her behalf, shall pay the Association for such representation. The Association shall charge the faculty member for the reasonable cost of using such procedure.
- 15.3.9 The Association agrees that it will indemnify and hold harmless the District from attorney's fees, costs, charges, fees, awards and damages arising out of any matter commenced against the District due to compliance by the District with its obligations under this Article. The District agrees that in consideration of the Association's obligation hereunder the District will notify the Association in writing of any matter within seven (7) days of service thereof upon the District. The District and the Association shall both fully cooperate with each other on any matter commenced against the District. The Association may, at its discretion, determine whether to defend, settle in whole or in part or appeal the matter.

15.3.10 Remittance of Funds

- 15.3.10.1 Funds deducted on behalf of the Association pursuant to this Article will be remitted to the Association within five (5) working days of the close of the preceding pay period, provided the District shall not be responsible for delays beyond its control.
- 15.3.10.2 The District will provide the Association with a statement accompanying the remittance indicating the amount of the deductions during the preceding pay period and the amount to be remitted to the Association.

ARTICLE 16. SAVINGS PROVISION

If any provisions of the Agreement are held to be contrary to law by a court of competent jurisdiction, such provisions will not be deemed valid and subsisting except to the extent permitted by law, but all other provisions will continue in full force and effect.

ARTICLE 17. CONCERTED ACTIVITIES

- 17.1 It is agreed and understood that there will be no strike, work stoppage, slow-down, sickout, picketing or refusal or failure to fully and faithfully perform job functions and responsibilities as contained in the Position Description, or other interference with the operations of the district by the Association or by unit members during the term of this Agreement, including compliance with the request of other labor organizations to engage in such activity.
- 17.2 The Association recognizes the duty and obligation of its representatives to comply with the provisions of this Agreement and to make every effort toward inducing all members to do so. In the event of a strike, work stoppage, sick-out, slow-down, or other interference with the operations of the district by employees who are represented by the Association, the Association agrees in good faith to take all necessary steps to cause those employees to cease such action.
- 17.3 It is understood and agreed that any member violating this Article may be subject to discipline, including termination, by the District.
- 17.4 It is further understood that in the event this Article is violated, the District shall be entitled to withdraw any rights, privileges, or services provided for in this Agreement or in District policy from any member and/or the Association.

ARTICLE 18. SUPPORT OF AGREEMENT

The District and Association agree to support this Agreement for its term.

ARTICLE 19. EFFECT OF AGREEMENT

It is understood and agreed that the specific provisions contained in this Agreement shall prevail over District practices and procedures and over State laws to the extent permitted by State law, and that in the absence of specific provisions in this Agreement, such provisions in this Agreement, such as practices and procedures are discretionary with the District.

ARTICLE 20. COMPLETION OF MEET AND NEGOTIATION

- 20.1 During the term of this Agreement, the Association expressly waives and relinquishes the right to meet and negotiate and agrees that the District shall not be obligated to meet and negotiate with respect to any subject or matter whether or not referred to or covered in the Agreement, even though such subject or matter may not have been within the knowledge or contemplation of either or both the District or the Association at the time they met and negotiated on and executed this Agreement, and even though such subjects or matters were proposed and later withdrawn.
- 20.2 Not later that the first regularly scheduled Board meeting in March of each year, the Association shall submit its initial proposal for the subsequent school year. The District shall submit its proposal in sufficient time to meet the public notice provisions of the Public Employment Relations Act and begin negotiations no later that May 1 of that year.
- 20.3 Not later than ten (10) working days following the last regularly scheduled meeting of the Board in May of each year, the Association and the District shall meet and begin negotiations, provided that there is not a decertification petition filed under Government Code Section 3544.7(c).
- 20.4 During this three-year contract, CAUSE and the District agree to the following reopeners for negotiations:
 - 20.4.1 For the 2008-2009 school year Article 6, three (3) items from the Association, three (3) items from the District
 - 20.4.2 For the 2009-2010 school year Article 6, three (3) items from the Association, three (3) items from the District

ARTICLE 21. TERMS OF THE AGREEMENT

The term of this agreement shall be from July 1, 2007 through June 30, 2010. This Agreement shall remain in full force and effect year by year unless one of the parties notifies the other in writing no later than the second regularly scheduled March, 2010 meeting of the Board of Education of its request to terminate, amend or modify this Agreement.

APPENDIX A – CERTIFICATED SALARY SCHEDULE CARPINTERIA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT CERTIFICATED SALARY SCHEDULE EFFECTIVE JULY, 1 2013

	STEP	CLASS I BA + 30 APPROVED SEM. UNITS	CLASS II MA OR BA + 45 APPROVED SEM. UNITS	CLASS III MA + 15 OR BA + 60 APPRV. SEM. UNITS	CLASS IV MA + 30 OR BA + 75 APPRV. SEM. UNITS
r	1	39,779	40,973	42,908	45,168
•	2	40,973	42,908	45,168	47,427
•	3	42,908	45,168	47,427	49,687
•	4	45,168	47,427	49,687	51,946
•	5	47,427	49,687	51,946	54,206
•	6	49,687	51,946	54,206	56,465
•	7	51,946	54,206	56,465	58,725
•	8	54,206	56,465	58,725	60,984
•	9	56,465	58,725	60,984	63,244
•	10		60,984	63,244	65,503
•	11			65,503	67,763
•	12			67,763 (MA req.)	70,022 (MA req.)
	13			70,022 (MA req.)	72,282 (MA req.)
	14			72,282 (MA req.)	74,541 (MA req.)

Hourly rate, career increments and RL's will be calculated on a salary base of \$37,181.00 Hourly rate, career increments and RL's will be calculated (x 0.012957) on a salary base of Class I/ Step I (Eff 7/1/14)

Career increments (effective 1977-78):

15 years 3%

20 years 3% additional 25 years 3% additional 30 years 3% additional

Hourly Rate: \$33.47 Hourly Rate Effective 7/1/14: = Class I/ Step I \times 0.0009 = \$35.80

Up to a maximum number of five full-time years of outside teaching experience (Step 6) may be allowed for initial placement on the salary schedule.

The Carpinteria Unified School District prohibits discrimination in employment, educational programs, and activities on the basis of race, national origin, color, creed, religion, sex, age, disability, sexual orientation, or gender identity.

Retro to 7/1/13, Board Approved 6/24/2014

PRE-K SALARY SCHEDULE EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2013

Da	Associa Teache		eacher	Master		ite	Program		1
Da Ho		-					•		
Da Ho				Teacher	Supe	rvisor	Director		
Da Ho								Based on	185 days
Ho	nnual 30,1		31,069	32,002		32,962	33,951		
	aily 163.		167.94	172.98		178.17	183.52		
2	lourly 20.	38	20.99	21.62		22.27	22.94		
	31,0	69	32,002	32,962		33,951	34,968		
	167.	94	172.98	178.17		183.52	189.02		
	20.	99	21.62	22.27		22.94	23.63		
3	32,0	12	32,962	33,951		34,968	36,019		
	172.		178.17	183.52		189.02	194.70		
	21.		22.27	22.94		23.63	24.34		
4	32,9		33,951	34,968		36,019	37,099		
	178.		183.52	189.02		194.70	200.54		
	22.	27	22.94	23.63		24.34	25.07		
5	33,9	51	34,968	36,019		37,099	38,212		
	183.	52	189.02	194.70		200.54	206.55		
	22.	94	23.63	24.34		25.07	25.82		
6	34,9	68	36,019	37,099		38,212	39,358		
	189.		194.70	200.54		206.55	212.75		
	23.		24.34	25.07		25.82	26.59		
7	36,0		37,099	38,212		39,358	40,539		
	194.		200.54	206.55		212.75	219.13		
	24.	34	25.07	25.82		26.59	27.39		
8	37,0	99	38,212	39,358		40,539	41,754		
	200.	54	206.55	212.75		219.13	225.70		
	25.	07	25.82	26.59		27.39	28.21		
9	38,2	12	39,358	40,539		41,754	43,009		1
	206.		212.75	219.13		225.70	232.48		1
	25.		26.59	27.39		28.21	29.06		1
40									
10	39,3		40,539	41,754		43,009	44,297		_
	212.		219.13	225.70		232.48	239.44		
-	26.	09	27.39	28.21		29.06	29.93		+
Unite ECE	E/CD including core	cources **			BA with 24 ECE/I	DE unito inclu	ıdina		
	+ hours per day with		000				nits, 6 Administration units, 2	2 Adult euponieid	on unite
Jays OI 37	+ riouis pei day witi	iii z years experier	ice				(1) program year of site sup		
Linits FCF	E/CD incl. core cou	ses ** nlus 16 Gen	eral Education	(GE) units	Site Supervisor si	atus and one	(1) program year or site sup	Delvisor experient	Je
	3+ hours per day wi	•		r (OL) driits	*One course in ea	ach of four (4)	general education categorie	s which meet a	raduation rec
uays or c	or flours per day wi	illii 4 years expend	siice				or Science; Social Sciences;		
I Inits± FC	CE/CD incl. core co	ıreae** nlue 16 Gar	neral Education	n (GE) units			an growth & dev, child/family		
	ialization units + 2 A			ii (OL) uiito	and family relation			y community of t	/ mu
	3+ hours per day wi		ii.S		and lamily relation	is, and progra	ams/cumculum		+
uays of s	or nours per udy wi	ımı 7 yeais			3 25% retroactive	e nav from 7	7/2013, Board Approved 6/2	24/2014	+
(or 60 uni	nits) with 24 ECE/CE	Lunite including cor	re courses**		5.25 /6 TELI DACLIV	c pay II UIII /	72013, Doard Approved 6/	∠¬, ∠∪ ¬	+
	6 Administration u				Note: Movemen	t on the sals	ary schedule is contingent	t unon receint o	of adequate
				s of supervising adults			to cover the salary costs.	. apon receipt o	. adoquate

APPENDIX B - CERTIFICATED EVALUATION FORM

Carpinteria Unified School District Certificated Evaluation Form

Em	ploy	ree's Name	School		
Eva	aluato	or's Name	Employee's Assignment		
			Employee's Cred	ential	
_			Expiration Date_		
In I	Progr	ress	AD STATUS: Comp	leted	
CUS "Me elen	SD's T eets" t nents t	six teaching domains must be rated. Each domain will be evaluate Teaching Standards adapted from the California Standards for the rating for a given domain signifies that a teacher has demonstrate listed in the domain. An unsatisfactory evaluation is one that rate a single domain that is rated as "Does not meet" over two consec	e Teaching Profession (CST) ed proficiency in a majority es two or more domains as	TP). A of the	
		EVALUATION DOMAINS	Meets	Does	
		not	t meet	Does	
I.	Elem	nents for Engaging & Supporting All Students in Learning			
	1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4	Connects student's prior knowledge, life experience, and interes Uses a variety of instructional strategies and resources to respon Facilitates learning experiences that promote autonomy, interact Engages students in problem solving, critical thinking, and other meaningful Promotes self-directed, reflective learning for all students.	nd to students' diverse need tion, and choice r activities that make subject ents		
		Comments:			
		_			
Dec	ac not	t meet	ľ	Meets	

- II ELEMENTS FOR CREATING & MAINTAINING EFFECTIVE ENVIRONMENTS FOR STUDENT LEARNING
 - 2.1 Creates a physical environment that engages all students
 - 2.2 Establishes a climate that promotes fairness and respect
 - 2.3 Promotes social development and group responsibility

2.4 2.5 2.6	Establishes and maintains standards for student behavior Plans and implements classroom procedures and routines that support student learning Uses instructional time effectively Comments:
	_
	_

	\mathbf{M}	CCU	
	Does	meet	
. Elem	ents for Understanding & Organizing Subject Matter for Student Learning		
3.2 3.3 3.4	Demonstrates knowledge of subject matter content and student development Organizes curriculum to support student understanding of subject matter Interrelates ideas and information within and across subject matter areas Develops student understanding through instructional strategies that are appropriate Uses materials, resources, and technologies to make subject matter accessible to stude Comments:		natter
		Meets Does not mee	et
4.1	Draws on and values students' backgrounds, interests, and developmental learnin	ng needs	Ę
4.1	Draws on and values students' backgrounds, interests, and developmental learnin ablishes and articulates goals for student learning Develops and sequences instructional activities and materials for student learning Designs short-term and long-term plans to foster student learning		Ţ
4.1 2.2 Esta 4.3 4.4	Draws on and values students' backgrounds, interests, and developmental learnin ablishes and articulates goals for student learning Develops and sequences instructional activities and materials for student learning Designs short-term and long-term plans to foster student learning Modifies instructional plans to adjust for student needs		[
4.1 4.2 Esta 4.3 4.4	Draws on and values students' backgrounds, interests, and developmental learnin ablishes and articulates goals for student learning Develops and sequences instructional activities and materials for student learning Designs short-term and long-term plans to foster student learning Modifies instructional plans to adjust for student needs		
4.1 1.2 Estata 4.3 4.4 4.5	Draws on and values students' backgrounds, interests, and developmental learning ablishes and articulates goals for student learning Develops and sequences instructional activities and materials for student learning Designs short-term and long-term plans to foster student learning Modifies instructional plans to adjust for student needs Comments:		

			
		Meets	Does not meet
VI	Elements for Developing As a Professional Educator		

- 6.1 Reflects on teaching practice and plans professional development
 6.2 Establishes professional goals and pursues opportunities to grow professionally

6.3 Works with communities to improve professional practice 6.4 Works with families to improve professional practice 6.5 Works with colleagues to improve professional practice	
Comments:	
Satisfactory Unsatisfacto	ry
OVERALL EVALUATION	
Comments (Address commendations or recommendations to any of the above area	as):
EMPLOYEE'S ACKNOWLEDGMENT: I acknowledge that this evaluation has be have been provided with written recommendations where improvement is indicate necessarily indicate my agreement. I understand that I may attach a written responsively of my personnel file.	d, but my signature does not use to this form within ten (10)
Evaluatee's Signature	Date
Evaluator's Signature	Date

Carpinteria Unified School District

Peer Assistance and Review

Contents:

- The PAR Agreement
- Calendar for Required Participants
- Calendar for Volunteer Participants
- PAR Certificated Professional Growth Plan
- PAR Formal Observation Pre-planning Sheet
- PAR Formal Observation Form
- PAR Initial Principal Contact Form
- PAR Action Plan
- Administrator Formal Evaluation Waiver Form
- PAR Mid-year Summative Review Form
- PAR End-of-year Summative Review Form
- Carpinteria Peer Assistance and Review Participant Background Sheet
- PAR Support Documentation Sheet

PEER ASSISTANCE AND REVIEW

Jointly Created by

Carpinteria Unified School District and Carpinteria Association of United School Employees

CHAPTER 1 - INTRODUCTION

Philosophy

The Peer Assistance and Review Program (from here on referred to as PAR) is a cooperative effort by Carpinteria Unified School District (from here on referred to as District) and Carpinteria Association of United School Employees (from here on referred to as CAUSE) to assist veteran teachers in need of development in subject matter knowledge or teaching strategies for the purpose of improving instruction and student performance. PAR is a major step in expanding the authority of teachers in managing the profession by utilizing their expertise together with that of management to provide collegial support, assistance, and review.

Purpose

The purpose of the PAR program is to provide professional assistance as well as sufficient and continuous professional development to teachers in need of development in the subject matter knowledge or teaching strategies needed to improve student performance. PAR shall establish a feedback mechanism that allows exemplary teachers to assist veteran teachers in need of development in subject matter knowledge and/or teaching strategies. PAR will focus on a teacher's classroom performance as it relates to his or her ability to engage student in learning, create an effective environment, organize subject matter, plan instruction, assess learning, and develop as a professional.

The Peer Assistance and Review Program will:

- a. promote collaboration among Consulting Teachers and administrators
- b. utilize instructional expertise from exemplary classroom teachers
- c. enhance and improve classroom instruction to maximize student performance
- d. establish a system of peer assistance, modeling and evaluation by the Consulting Teacher
- e. create a system where teachers participate in the decision making process of granting tenure, retention, and dismissal

Goals

The PAR program will expect and encourage a cooperative relationship between the Consulting Teacher and the principal at each site. The guiding principle will be the improvement of the performance of the participating teacher in order to provide better instruction for students.

Each Certificated teacher who applies for the position of Consulting Teacher will:

- a. submit an application
- b. submit at least two letters of recommendation
- c. authorize the review of performance evaluations by the Panel
- d. be observed in the classroom by a Panel representative
- e. interview with the Panel

The Peer Assistance and Review Program will:

- a. provide a Consulting Teacher for teachers requesting assistance
- b. provide a Consulting Teacher for teachers who have received an unsatisfactory evaluation
- c. design an appropriate action plan and evaluation for certificated staff in PAR

Definitions

A teacher who has been identified as performing in an unsatisfactory manner and is assigned to assistance shall be referred to as a "Required Participant".

A Teacher who has volunteered to participate in PAR shall be referred to as a "Volunteer Participant".

Participant shall be used when referring to: Required Participant and Volunteer Participants

The teacher who is directed to assist the Participant shall be referred to as "Consulting Teacher" and will work exclusively with program Participants.

The teacher who is directed to assist the Participant in a subject matter or site information and is not responsible for evaluation shall be referred to as "Specialist Teacher".

CHAPTER 2 - THE ASSISTANCE

Peer Review Panel

The Peer Review Panel (from here on referred to as Panel) shall have the following governance structure: three certificated teachers and two administrators. Certificated teachers shall be selected by Cause. Administrators shall be selected by the District. A Required Participant and a Required Participant's supervisor shall not serve on the panel for that year. A Consulting Teacher shall not serve on the panel.

The Panel shall select the Consulting Teachers for PAR. The Panel shall make recommendations to the Board regarding Participants in PAR, including the forwarding of names of those Participants who, after sustained assistance, are not able to demonstrate satisfactory improvement. The Panel shall terminate a Consulting Teacher whose performance does not meet the expectations of PAR.

<u>Duties and Responsibilities of Peer Assistance and Review Panel</u>

- a. to review referrals of tenured teachers to the program
- b. to select teachers to participate in PAR who volunteer for assistance
- c. to make recommendations to the Board regarding continuation in or dismissal from the PAR Program for Required Participants
- d. to evaluate the impact of PAR in order to improve the program
- e. to submit recommendations to CAUSE and the Board for improvement of PAR
- f. to attend scheduled meetings
- g. to approve an action plan within 30 days if reissuing an unsatisfactory evaluation
- h. to select one Consulting Teacher for elementary and one Consulting Teacher for secondary
- i. to meet at least four times annually to review the work of the Consulting Teacher.

Compensation for Peer Assistance and Review Panel

- a. release time for school day meetings
- b. summer meetings reimbursed at per-diem rate
- c. 1 R.L. stipend for each member of the Panel
- d. 3 R.L. for each Consulting Teacher

Consulting Teacher

Qualifications

1. Experience

- a. is currently a full-time tenured employee
- b. has substantial recent classroom experience (at least five years) in the District teaching within the subject area of one's major
- c. has demonstrated exemplary teaching ability
- d. breadth of experience is desirable
- e. continuing educational experiences are desirable

2. Knowledge.

- a. of specific curricular discipline(s) of teaching major
- b. of a wide range of teaching strategies and methods
- c. of how to meet the needs of pupils in different contexts
- d. of effective classroom management strategies
- e. of counseling and coaching strategies
- f. of AB IX (Villaraigosa, Peer Assistance and Review Program for Teachers)

3. Abilities and Skills

- a. to communicate effectively and tactfully in both oral and written form
- b. to counsel and assist peers
- c. to assess and prescribe appropriate instructional strategies
- d. to demonstrate effective instructional strategies
- e. to make recommendations to the Panel
- f. to organize and implement an effective action plan for each participating teacher

4. <u>Training</u>

- a. in evaluating procedures
- b. in classroom management and specific techniques
- c. in peer counseling and conflict resolution
- d. in curriculum design

Procedure for Selection of Consulting Teachers

Each Certificated teacher who applies for the position of Consulting Teacher will:

- a. submit an application
- b. submit at least two letters of recommendation
- c. authorize the review of performance evaluations by the Panel
- d. be observed in the classroom by a Panel representative
- e. interview with the Panel

A majority vote of five of the Panel members will be required for the selection of a Consulting Teacher.

Guidelines for Consulting Teacher

- a. will be on a yearly basis
- b. may re-apply by indicating to the Panel interest in another year
- c. will be limited to three consecutive years
- d. will agree not to pursue administrative positions during their terms as Consulting Teachers
- e. will provide one year of service in the classroom after serving as Consulting Teacher
- f. will be allowed to return to their original schools and to the same or similar teaching assignments and conditions, if they so desire

Compensation for the Consulting Teachers

- a. A Consulting Teacher, when identified will receive 3 RL to be paid semi-annually. The duties of the Consulting Teacher will be specified by the Panel.
- b. A Consulting Teacher may work with no more than three Required Participants
- c. Each Consulting Teacher may add additional days and shall be compensated for these additional days at an hourly rate commensurate to his/her per-diem rate on a 7 hour day, not to exceed \$2000.

Duties of the Consulting Teacher

Consulting Teachers shall have the primary responsibility for assistance and review of program Participants to whom they are assigned. It is expected that there will be frequent conversations, scheduled and non-scheduled, between the Consulting Teacher and the site administrator regarding PAR Participant. The Consulting Teacher will inform the site administrator of the progress being made by each PAR Participant.

Each Consulting Teacher will be required to:

- a. assist in writing clear performance goals with the Participant. Goals will be consistent with the California Standards for the Teaching Profession.
- b. recommend appropriate action to improve the skills and knowledge of each Participant, provide assistance with developing classroom materials, reviewing curriculum, suggesting classroom management techniques, record-keeping requirements, demonstrating teaching techniques, arranging for observations of other teachers, and planning instruction
- c. conduct multiple observations of each Participant
- d. provide a written post-observation to each Participant within two days after each observation
- e. present a report to the Panel designating area of improvement from action plan goals
- f. maintain a daily or weekly schedule of activities
- g. send a copy of observation reports of each Required Participant to the site administrator and a copy to the Panel
- h. recommend continuing in or dismissal from the PAR Program
- i. maintain a log for each Participant showing dates and time of contacts, including a summary of conversations, observations, and other forms of assistance provided

Upon assignment to the PAR program, the consulting teacher in consultation with the principal and the participating teacher shall develop performance goals for an individual teacher in writing, clearly stated, aligned with pupil learning, and consistent with Education Code § 44662 [Action Plan]. The assessment of progress toward these performance goals shall be the responsibility of the consulting teacher in accordance with the procedures in this agreement. The final evaluation of a teacher's participation in the program shall be made available for placement in the personnel file of the teacher receiving assistance.

Nothing in the above statement of responsibility shall relieve the principal of the obligation to evaluate and supervise the teacher receiving assistance but honoring the process of consultation and improvement on the identified PAR action plan. It is the responsibility of the principal and consulting teacher to co-ordinate assistance to the teacher and to the extent possible achieve a unified point of view in support of the teacher's participation in the process.

Consulting Teachers shall be "held harmless" and are protected from legal liability in the execution of their assigned duties. The District shall provide legal defense, if necessary, at no expense to the Consulting Teacher. Consulting Teachers shall not be considered management under the EERA.

Subject Specialist

CAUSE and the District recognize that additional Subject Specialists may be needed. A Subject Specialist provides subject area specific information that the Consulting Teacher may not be able to provide. In such cases, the Consulting Teacher maintains primary responsibility for the Individual Improvement Plan. The Subject Specialist will provide direct support for the Participating Teacher and recommend appropriate professional development activities.

Qualifications of a Subject Specialist will be the same as that of a Consulting Teacher. Subject Specialists will be paid at an hourly rate commensurate to his/her per-diem rate on a 7 hour day, not to exceed \$1000.

CHAPTER 3 - THE PARTICIPANTS

The Tenure Intervention Program

The Tenure Intervention Program is for teachers who have received an unsatisfactory evaluation from their site administrator. These Participants shall be called Required Participants. The goal of *Consulting Teacher* is to analyze all possible areas of deficiencies the teacher may have and to provide assistance in developing an effective classroom teacher. It is important to keep the site administrator informed of progress. If the assistance is failing and goals not met within a reasonable amount of time, should the Participant be recommended for dismissal.

The philosophy of *Consulting Teacher* is to provide assistance to teachers who previously implemented administrative improvement directive from his or her administrator has not been successful. Therefore, once a teacher has been placed in the Tenure Intervention Program, his or her administrator may be asked or may volunteer to waive the formal observation for the time period he or she is in PAR.

The Process

1. Identification of the Problem

a. An evaluation report will be prepared which specifically identifies areas of deficiencies and desired improvements in the employee's performance. This report shall also include all actions taken to resolve the deficiencies: A copy of the report must be given to the evaluatee. The evaluator will be the administrator to whom the employee is directly responsible.

2. Review by the PAR Panel

- a. Each referral shall be reviewed by the Panel.
- b. The Participant has the right to request representation from CAUSE.
- c. The Participant shall have the opportunity to make a presentation to the Panel.
- d. The principal retains the prerogative to pursue options as specified in the California Education Code.
- e. The Panel will assign a Consulting Teacher.
- f. The Participant will be advised of the procedures and be given a copy to follow.

3. The Consulting Teacher

a. The Consulting Teacher will review written evidence of the Participant's unsatisfactory performance.

- b. The Consulting Teacher, along with the site administration and the Participant, will develop a plan that will provide sufficient professional development to correct any area where performance is unsatisfactory.
- c. Consulting Teacher will observe the Participant's performance on an on-going basis.
- d. The Consulting Teacher will keep a log of all scheduled appointments and visits that were announced or unannounced.
- e. The Consulting Teacher will work with the employee during the assistance period and will complete written reports after each classroom evaluation or visit with the Participant.
- f. The Consulting Teacher will maintain contact and report to the Panel on the progress being made.
- g. This process will be completed between March 15th and May 15th. Upon mutual consent of the Panel and the Participant, the timeline may be extended up to one month or twenty teaching days.
- h. Copies of all reports must go to the Participant and the Panel.

4. Final Report

- a. Before submitting a final report to the Panel the Consulting Teacher will meet with the Participant to review the report.
- b. The final report will be presented to the Panel. The report will address the goals in the action plan, including all documented evidence collected during the assistance period.
- c. The final report will state whether the Participant has or has not improved in performance to the satisfactory level.
- d. The Consulting Teacher will make a recommendation for continuing in or dismissal from the PAR Program.

5. PAR Panel Action

- a. The Panel will review the final report and recommendation of the Consulting Teacher.
- b. The Panel will forward to the Governing Board the name of individuals who, after sustained assistance, were not able to demonstrate satisfactory improvement.

The Professional Development Program

The Professional Development Program is for any teacher in the District who request assistance in improving his/her teaching skills. This is a volunteer program and should carry any negative label. Teachers will be accepted into PAR by the Panel on the basis of each teacher's need and PAR budget. This is an opportunity to provide professional assistance in a proactive manner. The Participant may withdraw from the Professional Development Program with the agreement from the Consulting Teacher.

The Professional Development Program's philosophy is to provide assistance for many different reasons. Therefore, depending on the Participant's goals, an administrator may waive the formal observation for the year that the Participant is in PAR.

The Process

1. The PAR Panel

- a. Each applicant shall be reviewed by the Panel to determine whether acceptance into PAR is appropriate.
- b. The Panel will select the Volunteer Participants no later than second week of school.
- c. The teacher shall have the opportunity to make a presentation to the Panel.
- d. If the Panel rejects the referral, it shall provide the teacher with the reasons for the

rejection in writing.

e. The Panel will assign a Consulting Teacher and will advise the Participant of the procedure to be followed.

2. The Consulting Teacher

a. The Consulting Teacher, along with the site administration and the Participant, will

develop a plan that will provide sufficient professional development towards identified

goals, reflective of the California Standards for the Teaching Profession.

- b. A written action plan will be developed, including a timeline that will be approved by the Panel
- c. The Consulting Teacher will observe the Participant's performance on an ongoing

basis.

d. The Consulting Teacher will work with the Participant during the assistance period

and will complete written reports after each classroom observation or visit with

Participant.

e. The Consulting Teacher will keep a log of all scheduled appointments and visits that

were announced or unannounced.

f. The Consulting Teacher will maintain contact and report to the Panel on the progress

being made.

g. Copies of all reports must go to the Participant and the Panel.

3. Final Report

the

- a. Before submitting a final report to the Panel the Consulting Teacher will meet with the Participant to review the report.
- b. A final report will be made to the Panel and will address progress towards reaching goals.

4. PAR Panel Action

- a. The Panel will review the final report and recommendation of the Consulting Teacher related to the assistance plan.
- b. The final report, with the Participant's approval, may be placed in the teacher's personnel file.

CHAPTER 4 - THE GENERAL GUIDELINES

Reporting Procedures to the Panel

- a. At the Panel's quarterly meeting the Consulting Teacher shall provide progress report and all written documentation regarding the progress of each Participant.
- b. The Participant may be present for the presentation and will be given the opportunity to respond to the progress report.
- c. The Participant may not be present during the deliberation of the Panel, which is confidential. The Panel may request additional follow-up information from the principal, Consulting Teacher, or the Participant.

All deliberations and reports are confidential.

Conflict of Interest Clause

In the event that one of the Panel members is the administrator who has deemed that a Participant's performance is unsatisfactory he/she will remove himself or herself from the Panel during consideration and review of that Participant's case. A Panel member shall also remove himself or herself from any other situation that may be deemed a conflict of interest.

Additional Provisions

- a. Expenditures for the PAR program, including administrative costs of up to five percent, shall not exceed funds available.
- b. At the conclusion of each year, if revenue exceeds expenditures, the District and CAUSE shall meet to determine the allocation of the surplus in a manner that facilitates the purposes of the PAR program and the professional development activities of the District.
- c. It is understood and agreed that the PAR program shall terminate if PAR funding is discontinued.
- d. Nothing herein shall modify or in any manner affect the rights of the Governing Board/District under provisions of the Education Code relating to the employment, classification, retention, or non-reelection of certificated employees.
- e. Nothing herein shall modify or affect the District's right to issue notices of unsatisfactory performance and or unprofessional conduct pursuant to Educational Code Section 44938.

Participant's Due Process Rights

- a. The Participating Teacher shall be entitled to review all reports generated by the Consulting Teacher and principal prior to their submission to the Panel, and have his or her comments attached. The Consulting Teacher shall provide the Participating Teacher being reviewed with copies of such reports at least five (5) working days prior to the meeting of the Panel at which the reports will be considered.
- b. The Participating Teacher shall have the right to be represented by CAUSE in any meetings of the Panel to which s/he is called and shall be given a reasonable opportunity to present his/her point of view concerning any report being made.

- c. The decision to refer a teacher for intervention through PAR shall not be subject to the grievance process, nor shall a decision to remove a Participant from PAR be grievable.
- d. The Participating Teacher shall have the right to present in writing to the Panel why a specific Consulting Teacher should be replaced and another Consulting Teacher substituted and have those reasons be considered by the Panel.
- e. The Consulting Teacher and the PAR Panel may create documentation for all Participants. These documents shall be deemed as classified information and shall be sealed once the Participant is out of the PAR program. The only paperwork that shall be released from PAR will be the final evaluations to the personnel file and recommendations to the Board.
- f. The PAR program in no manner diminishes the legal rights of bargaining unit members of the District.

Program Continuation

The District and CAUSE shall meet annually to review and approve the components of the PAR.

CUSD Peer Assistance and Review *Formal Observation Pre-planning Sheet*

(Note: You may provide the information requested below in a different format. Please submit the requested info to your observer(s) at least one day prior to the formal observation.)

Teacher Name Grade		School
Type of lesson (F	Please check those that apply):	
	upSmall groupinforcement/Review	_Introductory
Curricular Area(s	s) addressed:	
Strand/Element F	Focus:	
Lesson Goal/Obj	ective:	
Brief description	of lesson plan and materials to be	used:
		•

	=		
	=		
	=		
-	_		
·		·	·

Carpinteria Unified School District – PAR INITIAL PRINCIPAL CONTACT

Date	Consulting Teacher
School	Phone
Principal	Site Secretary
PARTICIPATING TEACHER	C(S):
1	2
3	4
PROCEDURES REQUESTED How do you want Consulting	O WHEN CONSULTANT IS AT THE SITE: Teacher to check in?
Where do you want Consulting	g Teacher to park?
What is the best way for the Co	onsulting Teacher to contact you?
Other:	
SUGGESTED LOCATIONS I	FOR CONFIDENTIAL MEETINGS:

CONS	SULTING TEACHER NEEDS:
	BELL SCHEDULE CALENDAR
	MAP
	MASTER SCHEDULE SECRETARY WITH WHOM MESSAGES, COMMUNICATIONS CAN BE LEFT
	ACCESS TO A COPY MACHINE
	OTHER:

Carpinteria Unified School Districts PAR Program Background Sheet

	-		
City/Zip:			
		Birthday:	
E-mail:			
		Room. #(s):	
		Grade Level(s):	
College(s) (und			
Major/Degree:			
Credential Prog	gram:		
Credential(s) H	- Ield:		
Teaching Experience Year(s)	erience (student teaching, substi District/Site	tuting, regular teaching, etc.): Subject/Grade	
	•		
	-		
	-		

	_
Previous Professions/Personal Information (hobbies, interests, continuing degree work, et	c.)
	_
	_
	_

Daily Schedule (Please attach - please include approximate arrival/departure times to assist in planning potential meetings - K-5 only)

Middle School/High School

Daily Teaching Schedule 1st Semester

Period	Subject	Room #	Location

Daily Teaching Schedule 2nd Semester

Period	Subject	Room #	Location

CARPINTERIA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT PEER ASSISTANCE & REVIEW

materials) (Notes a	about meetings, conferences, workshops, demonstrations,
NAME	[] Year l []
Year 2	
SUPPORT PROVIDER	
DATE	TYPE OF SUPPORT

Carpinteria Unified School District

PAR Professional Growth Plan

Participant	School_	
Consulting Teacher		

This electronic format has been established for the purpose of developing a Growth Plan to match the standards marked "Does not meet" on the CUSD Certificated Evaluation Form. Since the document is electronic it can be expanded for additional text. Below the elements state goals and/or objective and activities that include student product or evidence for evaluation. Space is provided for the teacher to make comments prior to the lesson and the Consulting Teacher to make comments and/or suggestions after the lesson.

CRITERIA

II. Engaging & Supporting All Students in Learning

- 1.5 Connects student's prior knowledge, life experience, and interests with learning goals
- 1.6 Uses a variety of instructional strategies and resources to respond to students' diverse needs
- 1.7 Facilitates learning experiences that promote autonomy, interaction, and choice
- 1.8 Engages students in problem solving, critical thinking, and other activities that make subject matter meaningful
- 1.9 Promotes self-directed, reflective learning for all students

Goals and/or Objectives:

Activities:

Student product or evidence for Evaluation:

Teacher's Comments:

Consulting Teacher's Comments and Suggestions:

- III CREATING & MAINTAINING EFFECTIVE ENVIRONMENTS FOR STUDENT LEARNING
 - 2.7 Creates a physical environment that engages all students
 - 2.8 Establishes a climate that promotes fairness and respect
 - 2.9 Promotes social development and group responsibility
 - 2.10 Establishes and maintains standards for student behavior
 - 2.11 Plans and implements classroom procedures and routines that support student learning
 - 2.12 Uses instructional time effectively

Goals and/or Objectives:

	Activities:
	Student product or evidence for Evaluation:
	Teacher's Comments:
	Consulting Teacher's Comments and Suggestions:
III.	Understanding & Organizes Subject Matter for Student Learning
	 3.6 Demonstrates knowledge of subject matter content and student development 3.7 Organizes curriculum to support student understanding of subject matter 3.8 Interrelates ideas and information within and across subject matter areas 3.9 Develops student understanding through instructional strategies that are appropriate to the subject matter 3.10Uses materials, resources, and technologies to make subject matter accessible to students
	Goals and/or Objectives:
	Activities:
	Student product or evidence for Evaluation:
	Teacher's Comments:
	Consulting Teacher's Comments and Suggestions:
VI	I Plans Instruction & Designing Learning Experiences for All Students
	 4.6 Draws on and values students' backgrounds, interests, and developmental learning needs 4.7 Establishes and articulates goals for student learning 4.8 Develops and sequences instructional activities and materials for student learning 4.9 Designs short-term and long-term plans to foster student learning 4.10 Modifies instructional plans to adjust for student needs
	Goals and/or Objectives:
	Activities:
	Student product or evidence for Evaluation:
	Teacher's Comments:

VIII Assessing Student Learning

5.6 Establishes and communicates learning goals for all students

Consulting Teacher's Comments and Suggestions:

5.7 Collects and uses multiple sources of information to assess student learning

5.8 Involves and guides all students in assessing their own learning5.9 Uses the results of assessments to guide instruction5.10 Communicates with students, families, and other audience about student	progress		
Goals and/or Objectives:			
Activities:			
Student product or evidence for Evaluation:			
Teacher's Comments:			
Consulting Teacher's Comments and Suggestions:			
IX Developing As a Professional Educator 6.6 Reflects on teaching practice and plans professional development 6.7 Establishes professional goals and pursues opportunities to grow profes 6.8 Works with communities to improve professional practice 6.9 Works with families to improve professional practice 6.10 Works with colleagues to improve professional practice Goals and/or Objectives: Activities: Student product or evidence for Evaluation: Teacher's Comments: Consulting Teacher's Comments and Suggestions:	sionally		
Signature of the participant does not constitute agreement, but merely acknowledgment of the observation and this record. A follow-up conference, if required, will provide opportunity for discussion and comment on the observation.			
Participant's Signature	Date		
Consulting Teacher's Signature	Date		

Carpinteria Unified School District Certificated Evaluation Form PAR Mid-year Review

Participa	ant	School	
Consulti	ing Teacher	Employee's As	signment
Status:	Required Voluntary	Temporary Probati	ionary
Participa	ant's Credential	Expiration Date	<u> </u>
Rate on Form. I Carpinto more the unsatisf	STATUS: Completed ly the areas that were marked "D Each standard will be evaluated be eria Unified School District Teach an one element of a given standar factory element). To receive an overall dards must be rated as "meets".	oes not meet" on the CUSD Cert pased on its supporting elements hing Standards rubric. In order t rd can be rated unsatisfactory (c	using the to meet standard no ircle each
Criteria	for Evaluation	Meets	Does not
1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5	Uses a variety of instructional strates Facilitates learning experiences that Engages students in problem solving matter meaningful Promotes self-directed, reflective learning to the self-directed of the self-directed o	ge, life experience, and interests with tegies and resources to respond to stu- at promote autonomy, interaction, an ing, critical thinking, and other activity	learning goals udents' diverse needs ad choice ties that make subject
			Meets Does
r -	creating & Maintaining Effective Englishes a physical environment that Establishes a climate that promotes Promotes social development and Establishes and maintains standard Plans and implements classroom p	at engages all students s fairness and respect group responsibility ls for student behavior rocedures and routines that support s	ng []

		Comments:	-
			-
		Meets	Does no
mee			
III			[]
	3.1	Demonstrates knowledge of subject matter content and student development	
	3.2 3.3	Organizes curriculum to support student understanding of subject matter	
	3.4	Interrelates ideas and information within and across subject matter areas Develops student understanding through instructional strategies that are appropriate to	tho
	5.4	subject matter	tile
	3.5	Uses materials, resources, and technologies to make subject matter accessible to studer	nts
	0.0	Comments:	105
			-
			-
			-
		Meets	
	D	oes not Meet	
IV	Plan	s Instruction & Designing Learning Experiences for All Students []	
	4.1	Draws on and values students' backgrounds, interests, and developmental learning nee	ds
	4.2	Establishes and articulates goals for student learning	
	4.3	Develops and sequences instructional activities and materials for student learning	
	4.4	Designs short-term and long-term plans to foster student learning	
	4.5	Modifies instructional plans to adjust for student needs	
		Comments:	=
			=
			=
		Meets Does not meet	
\boldsymbol{V}	A cco	essing Student Learning [] []	
•	5.1	Establishes and communicates learning goals for all students	
	5.2	Collects and uses multiple sources of information to assess student learning	
	5.3	Involves and guides all students in assessing their own learning	
	5.4	Uses the results of assessments to guide instruction	
	5.5	Communicates with students, families, and other audience about student progress	
		Comments:	
			-
			_

VI	Day	olonina As a Pro	fessional Educator	Meets	Does not meet		
VI	6.1		ing practice and plans p				
	6.2		essional goals and pursu				
	6.3		munities to improve pro				
	6.4		lies to improve professi		C		
	6.5	Works with colle	eagues to improve profe	ssional practice	ional practice		
Ove	rall E	Evaluation	Satisfactory []	Unsatisfac	etory		
Cor	nmen	ts (Address com	mendations or recomm	nendations to ar	ny of the above areas):		
me, sign to th	that I ature on is for	have been provide does not necessari m within ten (10)	ed with written recomme ly indicate my agreemen	endations where int. I understand thate on which the	raluation has been discussed with improvement is indicated, but my hat I may attach a written response report was received and that this		
Part	icipa	nt's Signature			Date		
Cor	sultir	— ng Teacher's Sign	nature		Date		

Carpinteria Unified School District Certificated Evaluation Form PAR End-of-year Summative Review

Participa	antSchool		
Consulti	ng TeacherEmployee's Ass	gnment	
Status:	Required Voluntary Temporary Probatic	nary	
Participa	ant's CredentialExpiration Date_		
Rate only Form. I Carpinte more the unsatisfe	TATUS: Completed In Progress In the areas that were marked "Does not Meet" on the CUSD Certificant standard will be evaluated based on its supporting elements us writed a School District Teaching Standards rubric. In order to an one element of a given standard can be rated unsatisfactory (ciractory element). To receive an overall evaluation of satisfactory at lards must be rated as "meets".	sing the meet standard no cle each	
Criteria	for Evaluation Meets	Does not	
1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5	Connects student's prior knowledge, life experience, and interests with I Uses a variety of instructional strategies and resources to respond to stude Facilitates learning experiences that promote autonomy, interaction, and Engages students in problem solving, critical thinking, and other activitimatter meaningful Promotes self-directed, reflective learning for all students Comments:	earning goals lents' diverse needs choice es that make subject	
		Meets	Does
not meet II Cree [] 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.6	ating & Maintaining Effective Environments for Student Learning	. []	_ 333

		Comments:	-
			-
		Meets	Does no
mee			
III			[]
	3.1	Demonstrates knowledge of subject matter content and student development	
	3.2 3.3	Organizes curriculum to support student understanding of subject matter	
	3.4	Interrelates ideas and information within and across subject matter areas Develops student understanding through instructional strategies that are appropriate to	tha
	5.4	subject matter	uic
	3.5	Uses materials, resources, and technologies to make subject matter accessible to studen	nts
	5.5	Comments:	
			-
			-
			-
		Meets	
	D	oes not meet	
IV	Plan	s Instruction & Designing Learning Experiences for All Students []	
	4.1	Draws on and values students' backgrounds, interests, and developmental learning need	ds
	4.2	Establishes and articulates goals for student learning	
	4.3	Develops and sequences instructional activities and materials for student learning	
	4.4	Designs short-term and long-term plans to foster student learning	
	4.5	Modifies instructional plans to adjust for student needs	
		Comments:	-
			-
			
			-
		Meets Does not meet	
\boldsymbol{V}	A cca	essing Student Learning [] []	
V	5.1	Establishes and communicates learning goals for all students	
	5.2	Collects and uses multiple sources of information to assess student learning	
	5.3	Involves and guides all students in assessing their own learning	
	5.4	Uses the results of assessments to guide instruction	
	5.5	Communicates with students, families, and other audience about student progress	
	2.0	Comments:	
			-
			_

		-			
				Meets	Does not meet
VI	Deve	eloping As a Prot	fessional Educator	[]	[]
. –	6.1	1 0	ng practice and plans p		
	6.2		ssional goals and pursu		
	6.3	Works with comm	nunities to improve pro	ofessional practice	
	6.4	Works with famil	ies to improve professi	onal practice	
	6.5		agues to improve profe		
		Comments:			
			Satisfactory	Unsatisfact	tory
Ova	rall I	Evaluation			iory
0,0	iuu L	2rananon	L J	L J	
Cor	nmen	ts (Address comn	nendations or recomm	nendations to an	y of the above areas):
COI	11111011	ts (Haaress comm	icindations of recoini	nendations to an	ly of the above areas).
ΕM	PLOY	EE'S ACKNOWL	EDGMENT: Lacknow	ledge that this ev	aluation has been discussed with
					mprovement is indicated, but my
					nat I may attach a written response
					report was received and that this
			anent part of my perso		1
•		•			
Par	ticipa	nt's Signature			Date
	•	<u> </u>			
Cor	ısultir	ng Teacher's Sign	ature		Date

Carpinteria Unified School District Peer Assistance and Review – PAR

Application for Consulting Teacher or Secondary Subject specialist

I am applying for (check one): Consulting Teacher - Elementary () Consulting Teacher - Secondary () Subject Specialists - Secondary only ())
Name		Date	
School	Grade	Department	
Years of Teaching i	in the District		
Please address the quali Experience —	ifications listed on the cover page i	n the following areas:	
Knowledge –			
Abilities and Skills	_		
Training –			

Please ind	icate your class	sroom schedule for PAR Pa	anel visitation.	
Day	Time	Subject		
				
				
				
1.)	recommendatio	on will be sent under separa 2.)	ate cover from:	
		norizes the PAR panel to reprior to the PAR Panel into	view my performance evaluations and erview.	1
Sig	gnature		Date	

ADDENDUM TO CONTRACT

2014-15 Tentative Agreement signed on June 3, 2015

2015-16 Tentative Agreement signed on September 28, 2016

Classified Safety Article (signed on February 26, 2016 and incorporated into the Certificated Tentative Agreement on June 3, 2016)

Certificated Counselor Evaluation Form

TENTATIVE AGREEMENT BETWEEN CAUSE CERTIFICATED, CAUSE CLASSIFIED AND CUSD 2014-15

Except as modified below or previously tentatively agreed, the District and CAUSE agree to the continuation of the current collective bargaining agreement.

- 1. The salary schedules for certificated and classified employees shall be increased by four percent (4%) effective July 1, 2014. Effective on the date of the increased cost for health benefits in the policy year 2016-17, the District agrees to increase the salary schedule by the amount of the increased employee contribution as set out below. For example, if the increase in health care costs were to be \$160,000, an increase of \$80,000 will be made to the salary schedules. The method for placement on the salary schedules will be to divide 50% of the total increased cost for health benefits regardless of the plan chosen by the individual unit member. That 50% increase will be divided by the number of District FTE's and placed on each step of the salary schedules.
- 2. The health and welfare program shall be the 80-20 E plan (which includes medical, vision, and dental) offered by Anthem Blue Cross through SISC. For the policy year 2015-16 (80-20 E plan), the District will pay the full cost for the composite rate. /Future increases for the negotiated plan would be shared fifty-fifty beginning in the 2016-17 policy year. In other words, 50% of the increase would be paid by the District and 50% by the unit member. (To take advantage of the tax savings for health benefit payments, an IRC 125 will be made available for a unit member payments).
- 3. Salary increases above the employee contribution will be bargained on a yearly basis beginning no later than October of each year.
- 4. Contract reopeners for 2015-16 will include Article 6 (Compensation and Benefits), three (3) items from the Association, and three (3) items from the District.
- 5. In September of 2015-16, and in each following September, both the District and CAUSE agree to initiate bargaining with the intention of discussing the allocation of resources between salary and health benefits. This will allow our conversations to start in time to deal with future increases and the Affordable Care Act. The CUSD/CAUSE Health Committee shall be convened no later than October 1st of each year to address future options, including but not limited to high deductible options, health savings accounts, Opt-Out provisions, and alternative providers in light of the excise tax contained in the Affordable Care Act.

J. C.Cain Saah Darhan	Flicity Moore
	Mathlen Manos
	Mannem Paradis
For the District	For CAUSE Certificated The Hallandus
For District June 3, 2015	

For CAUSE Classified

TENTATIVE AGREEMENT REACHED IN MEDIAITON FOLLOWING FACT FINDING BETWEEN CAUSE Certificated, CAUSE Classified and CUSD

ARTICLE 4: Grievance

Will be amended to include a mediation step to be performed by the state mediation and conciliation service. The parties will pay the cost for their own representatives. Cost of the 1:1-ediator will split 50%/50%.

ARTICLE 6: COMPENSATION

15-16: 1% on schedule, effective April 1, 2016.

16-17: 2% on schedule effective April 1, 2017 plus contingency increase.

Contingency for 16-17:

• For the purposes of the contingency increase the property tax estimate is \$19,937,460 (the "property tax baseline"). If the actual property taxes received by CUSD exceed the property tax baseline by \$200,000, 1% will be added to the salary schedule effective July 1, 2016.

- If the actual property taxes received exceeding the baseline by the district are more than \$200,000, 80% of the excess shall be converted to a salary increase to all employees effective July I,2016.
- <u>If a salary increase is earned from this provision, the property tax estimate for 2017-18 shall be adjusted upward by the amount that actual property taxes exceed \$19,937,460.</u>
- The parties agree to meet on or before May 1, 2017 to finalize the property tax receipts.

17-18: 1% on schedule, effective April 1, 2018 plus contingency increase.

Contingency for 17-18:

- For the purposes of the contingency increase the property tax estimate is \$20,698,802 (the "property tax baseline"). If the actual property taxes received by CUSD exceed the property tax baseline by \$200,000, 1% will be added to the salary schedule effective July 1, 2017.
- If the actual property taxes received by the district exceeding the baseline are more than \$200,000, 80% of the excess shall be converted to a salary increase to all employees effective July 1, 2017.
- The parties agree to meet on or before May 1, 2018 to finalize the property tax receipts.

Longevity (for certificated unit)

Longevity step at 25 years shall be increased from 3% to 6% effective 7/1/16.

Longevity step at 30 years shall be increased from 3% to 6% effective 7/1/16.

ARTICLE 13: Parental Leave (*Certificated*) – (*Article 12 Classified*)

The language of Article 13 will be modified to require CUSD to comply with the Parental Leave legislation (AB 375) which became effective 1/1/16.

ARTICLE 21: Terms of agreement (Certificated)

The term of the CBA is extended to June 30, 2018.

ARTICLE 28: TERMS OF AGREEMENT (CLASSIFIED)

The term of the CBA is extended to June 30, 2018.

OTHER ITEMS:

- TAs for Safety and Hours are incorporated in this agreement.
- Mutually agreed upon but not formally TA'ed Counselor Evaluation tool is incorporated in this agreement.
- This concludes negotiations for 2015-16, 2016-17, and 2017-18.

• The Parties may reopen articles for 2017-18 by mutual agreement.

For the Federation:

For the District:

89 of 95

ARTICLE 15: SAFETY

- 15.1 The District is committed to employee safety and endeavors to provide all employees with a safe and healthy working environment. The District has the responsibility for the safety of employees.
- 15.2 The District shall prepare, publish and post rules for safety and the prevention of accidents; provide protective devices where they are required for the safety of employees; and provide safe equipment where such equipment is required for the conduct of the District's educational program and the operation of schools.
 - 15.2.1 The Superintendent or designee shall be responsible for the promulgation of District safety rules and procedures.
- 15.2.2 Employees shall be responsible for observing all safety rules and standards and shall promptly report to the direct supervisor in writing any alleged unsafe or unhealthy conditions found in District facilities.
- 15.3 Unit members are to report any alleged unsafe or potentially unsafe conditions to their appropriate supervisor. Oral communications shall be confirmed in writing. Upon receipt of the unit member's written report of unsafe conditions, the Superintendent or designee will acknowledge in writing what action, if any, will be taken on the reported condition. Such response shall occur within five (5) workdays.
- 15.4 First aid materials shall be available at all facilities maintained by the District.
- 15.5 Any unit member who is threatened with bodily harm or who suffers bodily harm while fulfilling assigned duties shall, promptly report the threat or harm, followed when time permits, with a written report to the appropriate supervisor. The Superintendent or designee is authorized to initiate, when appropriate, legal proceedings against any individual to recover damages for injury caused by the willful misconduct of that individual to the person or property of an employee or another person on district premises or while conducting authorized district business.
- 15.5.1 When violations occur that endanger or threaten the safety or security of an employee, the supervisor shall immediately report the incident to the Superintendent or designee, who shall make necessary reports to law enforcement.
- 15.6 Any unit member who is concerned about communications from students, parents, or community members either directly or by an "electronic act" that are potentially threatening or defamatory shall bring those communications to the attention of his or her appropriate supervisor, so that they may be evaluated in light of legal requirements for an appropriate response. An "electronic act" is defined as the creation and transmission originated on or off the school site, by means of an electronic device, including, but not limited to, a telephone, wireless telephone, or other wireless communication device, computer, or pager, of a communication, including, but not limited to a message, text, sound, or image or an online / electronic post.
- 15.6.1 Due to the ever-changing nature of the electronic age in which we live, section 15.6 will be reviewed for relevancy on a yearly basis.

- 15.7 Any supervisor who has knowledge of a threat of bodily harm to a staff member or group of staff members shall promptly notify said staff member(s) and take appropriate action to protect the employee(s). The supervisor will also take action to notify the Superintendent or designee.
- 15.8 All employees shall take immediate action upon being made aware that any person is in possession of an unauthorized injurious object on school grounds or at a school-related or school-sponsored activity. The employee shall use his/ her own judgment as to the potential danger involved and, based upon this analysis, shall do one of the following: confiscate the object and inform the appropriate supervisor or deliver it to the supervisor immediately, who shall take appropriate action and notify the Superintendent or designee.
- 15.9 When absence is caused by an assault, a credible threat of an assault or injury that occurs within the scope of employment, the unit member shall be accommodated. The District shall grant the employee paid leave including but not limited to industrial or accident leave.
- 15.10- Assaultive Behavior Training: Within two weeks (or as otherwise reasonably scheduled) of a unit member's assignment to work with students who have a history of assaultive behaviors, the unit member shall be trained in the management of assaultive behaviors. Should other unit members wish to be trained in the management of assaultive behaviors and the District agrees it would assist that unit members' job performance, the District will schedule and conduct the training as time permits.
- 15.11- CAUSE shall appoint up to two members to serve on the District Safety Committee. The District Safety Committee shall distribute to all staff the minutes of safety meetings, which shall include the issues and steps being taken to achieve employee and student safety.

*Article 14 agreed upon by CAUSE Classified and CUSD this <u>26th</u> day of February, 2016.

CAUSE

CUSD

*The safety article in the certificated contract is article 15.

CARPINTERIA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT CERTIFICATED COUNSELOR EVALUATION FORM

Employe	e's Name:	School:		
Evaluato	r's Name:	Employee's Assignment:		
Employe	e's Credential:	Expiration Date:		
elements associati majority	using the CUSD's Counseling Standards a ons. A "meets" rating for a given domain s of the elements listed in the domain. An unas "Does not meet" or a single domain tha	rated. Each domain will be evaluated on the supporting adapted from state and national school counseling signifies that a counselor has demonstrated proficiency in a satisfactory evaluation is one that rates two or more at is rated "Does not meet" over two consecutive		
	Meets Does Not Mee	t		
I.	Elements for Planning, Organizing Program	ng, and Delivering the School Counseling		
1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4	Assists in designing a guidance program to meet the needs of the school. N/A Provides direct student services, individual student planning and responsive services. N/A Consults with parents and other educators to share strategies that support student achievement and success. N/A Collaborates with parents, other educators and community resources to support student achievement and success. N/A			
II.	Meets Does Not Mee	t School Guidance Curriculum by Using Effective		
11.		ata to Assist Program Direction and Emphasis.		

2.0

Uses data to develop a comprehensive guidance program that meets student needs. N/A ____

2.1	Indirect student services are provided on behalf of identified students: strategies to include referrals, consultations and collaboration. N/A		
2.2	Uses data to make schedule and program modifications. N/A		
2.3	Provides appraisal and advisement to assist all students with academic, career and personal/social planning. N/A		
			
	Meets Does Not Meet		
III.	Elements for Implementing and Guiding Students, Parents, and Guardians		
	Through the Development of Educational and Career Plans.		
3.0	Helps students develop goals and planning skills. N/A		
3.1	Accurately interprets and presents relevant, helpful assessment data to assist in structuring educational programs. N/A		
3.2	Monitors student academic performance, attendance and behavioral data to inform school counseling program goals. N/A		
3.3	Develop and implement programs that increase interpersonal awareness, social skill, and effective interpersonal communication. N/A		
	Meets Does Not Meet		
IV.	Elements of Effectively Using Individual and Small Group Counseling,		
	Consultation, and Referral Skills.		
4.0	Provides individual and group counseling to students with identified concerns and needs. N/A		
4.1	Refer students and parents to appropriate school and community resources to support student achievement and success. N/A		
4.2	Demonstrates understanding of and compliance with laws relating to privacy, student records, and child abuse. N/A		
4.3	Demonstrates cultural sensitivity to the needs of all students and their parents.		
1	N/A		

	Meets Does Not Meet		
V.	Elements of Monitoring Student Progress		
5.0	Works as necessary with support staff to implement monitoring systems appropriate to the individual school.		
5.1			
5.2 5.3	progress. N/A Assists with the development of required reports of student progress and school compliance. N/A Address student outcomes in personal, social academic, and career development. N/A		
	Meets Does Not Meet		
VI.	Elements for Advocating, leading, and Collaborating as a Systems Change Agent		
6.0	Analyzes data on how time is used and adjusts programs delivery to meet student needs as demonstrated in		
6.1	school data. N/A Promotes equity and access for every student. N/A		
6.2	Uses data to develop curriculum, small group, and closing the gap plans for effective delivery of the school counseling program. N/A		
6.3	Facilitate the development of a positive school environment that promotes active school engagement. N/A		
6.4	Advocate for the safety and well-being of all students through prevention, intervention, and treatment. N/A		
O 1			
Overa	ll Evaluation:		

Comments/Address Commendations or Recommendat	tions:
Employee's	
acknowledgment: I acknowledge that this evaluation has been discu with written recommendations where improvement is indicated, but my agreement. I understand that I may attach a written response to t the date on which the report was received and that this response wil file.	t my signature does not necessarily indicate this form within ten (10) working days from
Employee's Signature	Date
Evaluator's Signature	Date